





### Hardware specification regarding PC Expanion L100, L120, and L200

	L100	L120	L200
Dimension	8.46inch(W) x 6.30inch(D) x 1.57inch(H)	9.57inch(W) x 5.31inch(D) x 1.57inch(H)	9.57inch(W) x 5.31inch(D) x 1.57inch(H)
Weight	0.83 lb	0.81 lb	0.82 lb
Protocol	WoIP (Windows® over IP) / LoIP (Linux over IP)	WoIP (Windows® over IP) / LoIP (Linux over IP)	WoIP (Windows® over IP) / LoIP (Linux over IP)
Serial Port*	Х	Х	0
USB port	Х	Х	0
Operating	Windows <sup>®</sup> XP Home Edition	Windows® XP Home Edition	Windows® XP Home Edition
System	Windows <sup>®</sup> XP Professional	Windows <sup>®</sup> XP Professional	Windows <sup>®</sup> XP Professional
	Windows <sup>®</sup> 2000 Professional	Windows <sup>®</sup> 2000 Professional	Windows <sup>®</sup> XP Media Center Edition
	Windows <sup>®</sup> XP Media Center Edition	Windows <sup>®</sup> XP Media Center Edition	Windows <sup>®</sup> Server 2003
	Windows <sup>®</sup> Server 2003	Windows <sup>®</sup> Server 2003	Windows <sup>®</sup> Small Business Server 2003
	Windows <sup>®</sup> 2000 Server	Windows <sup>®</sup> Small Business Server 2003	Linux**
	Windows <sup>®</sup> Small Business Server 2003	Linux**	
	Linux**		

The specifications of the product may be altered without any advance notice being given to individual users.

\* Some restrictions apply

\*\* Some restrictions apply. See website for details.

### Copyright

NComputing Co., Ltd. has all rights reserved in respect of this User's Guide including patent rights, trademark rights, copyright and other intellectual property rights. No part of this User's Guide may be copied or reproduced in any form or by any manner without the prior permission of NComputing Co., Ltd. The use of the contents of this User's Guide in whole or in part may result in prosecution. The contents of software, sound recordings and video images, which are registered for copyright, are protected by copyright laws and other related laws. If any part of the contents of this product, which have been registered for copyright, are reproduced or distributed without permission, the legal responsibility lies with the users. The company, organizations, products, characters and events, which are used in the examples, are fictitious. NComputing Co., Ltd. does not have any intention of using actual companies, organizations, products, characters or events anywhere in the User's Guide, and therefore no such assumption is made. It is the user's responsibility to observe the relevant copyright laws.

### Trademarks

- Windows<sup>®</sup>, Windows<sup>®</sup> 2000 Professional, Windows<sup>®</sup> 2000 Server, Windows<sup>®</sup> XP Home Edition, Windows<sup>®</sup> XP Professional and Windows<sup>®</sup> XP Media Edition, Windows<sup>®</sup> Server 2003, Windows<sup>®</sup> Small Business Server 2003 are trademarks of Microsoft Corporation.
- Intel<sup>®</sup>, Pentinum<sup>®</sup> 4, and Xeon<sup>®</sup> are trademarks of Intel Corporation.
- PC Expanion<sup>®</sup> is a trademark of NComputing Corportaiton.

### Disclaimers

- The manufacturer, importers and agencies are not responsible for any accidental damage to the product or damage to the product which is caused by improper use and operation of this product.
- The information in the User's Guide has been written based on the specifications of current products. The manufacturer of the product, NComputing Co., Ltd., continues to upgrade the product with additional new functions, and will continue to improve the product by applying new technologies.
- The specifications of this product may be altered without advance notice given to individual users.

# Symbols and descriptions for the correct and safe use of the product.

The following instructions are for the correct use of this product and must be observed in order to prevent any unexpected danger that may occur to users or damage the product.

A user must read and follow this User's Guide instructions carefully before use.

Warning

possibility of damage to the

product when instructions are

not followed.



This sign indicates important information which a user must read carefully in order to use this device correctly.



This sign indicates helpful information which a user can refer to in order to use the system correctly.

### Classifications and descriptions of signs

The following descriptions for the correct use of the product must be referred to by the user in order to prevent any physical injury occurring from unexpected danger, or any loss of assets which may be caused by damage to the product.

### A user must read this User's Guide carefully before use and follow the instructions.

- Be sure that the place of installation is not too hot (temperature above 35C degrees) or too cold (temperature below 0C degrees), or too wet.
- Be sure to keep the mainframe safe from any severe impact.
- Be sure that the product does not come into direct contact with benzene or paint thinner.
- Be sure that the product is not exposed to direct sunlight or any hot machinery.
- Be sure to keep the product away from any items which have strong magnetic properties.
- Do not disassemble, repair or rebuild the product.
- Do not leave a LAN (Local Area Network) cable in any passageway. An electric shock, fire, damage to the product or physical injury may occur as a result of tripping over the cable.
- Disconnect the LAN cable from the product when the cable is not in use for a long period of time.
- Be sure to install the product in such a way that it is safe from damage caused by dropping or falling.

### **FCC Information to Use**

This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limit for a class B digital device, pursuant 15 of the FCC Rules.

These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference in a residential installation. This equipment generates, uses, and can radiate radio frequency energy, and if not installed and used in accordance with the instructions, may cause harmful interference to radio communications. However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation. If this equipment does cause harmful interference to radio or television reception, which can be determined by turning the equipment off and on, the user is encouraged to try and correct the interference by one or the following measures:

- Reorient or relocate the receiving antenna
- Increase the separation between the equipment and receiver
- Connect the equipment into an outlet on a circuit different from that to which the receiver is connected
- Consult the dealer or an experienced radio TV technician for help

Change or modification not expressly approved by the party responsible for compliance could void the user's authority to operate the equipment.

### Notice

#### Thank you for purchasing our company's product.

This product has been made by using state of the art technology from NComputing and has undergone thorough testing. An understanding of reliability has been reached for this product due to extensive testing. This User's Guide is designed to help the user to achieve easy installation and use of the product. Our company makes every effort to provide our customers with information related to the product, and with answers for any questions that may be asked by our customers. The performance of the product can be continuously enhanced via the software update utility. (Please refer to the relevant section of the User's Guide for more detailed information).The customer's registration and the registration of the product serial number, which can be done via the Internet, enables customers to receive the software upgrade service and ongoing technical support via the Internet for their convenience.

- Please note that reproduction of the User's Guide in whole or in part, without permission from the manufacturer, is not permitted.
- Please read the notes, which are related to safety, before use.
- The information in the User's Guide may vary depending on any improvements in the product and the model type of the purchased product.
- The manufacturer is not responsible for any damage to the product that is caused by using any products which are not specified as standard products, or by not following instructions and procedures correctly.
- This product is compatible with Windows<sup>®</sup> 2000 Professional, Windows<sup>®</sup> 2000 Server, Windows<sup>®</sup> XP Home Edition, Windows<sup>®</sup> XP Professional, Windows<sup>®</sup> XP Media Center Edition, Windows<sup>®</sup> Server 2003(Standard Edition/Enterprise Edition), Windows<sup>®</sup> Small Business Server 2003, Linux\*

- Any other operating systems including new operating systems require special software, which can be purchased separately, or an upgrade of the software is available at extra cost.
- This product is an independent terminal device which provides for the emulation of Windows, not a computer. Unlike an existing computer there is no need for the addition of auxiliary peripheral devices, or for the connection of different types of communication devices, or for the modification of hardware. The product does not support video images with a high picture quality or 3D games which have to be supported by high performance computers.

When more than one user shares one computer by using this product, the settings for related functions, which are provided by the Windows operating system, must be carried out as an adequate safety measure. The file service by using the NTFS (New Technology File System) method and environment settings in User Accounts in Control Panel must be carried out in administrator mode in order to ensure the security, easy maintenance and repair of the system. Please refer to the Windows operating system for more detailed information.

\* Some restrictions apply. See website for details.

### CONTENTS

### Part 1 Product Features

What is the PC Expanion<sup>®</sup>? 1-1

Features 1-1

System Minimum Requirement 1-2

OS (Operating System) and Maximum Connection Limit 1-3

PC Expanion<sup>®</sup> Conceptual Diagram 1-3

How to use the PC Expanion 1-4

### Part 2 NCT-2000-XP Installation

### Part 3 Setting up Network Configurations

Connecting to the network using a cable or DSL router 3-1 Connecting using a switch (Supports 100Mbps switching) 3-2

### art 4 Product Registration

Selecting online Internet registration 4-2

Creating a product registration document in instances where the Internet cannot be used for registration 4-3

Unregistration 4-6

- Part 5 Updating the NCT-2000-XP application via the Internet
- Part 6 NCT-2000-XP Remote Management Console
- Part 7 Using the "Setup"

### Part 8 Using the PC Expanion (Advanced)

- 1. How to add a new user account 8-1
- 2. How to check the IP address setting of PC Expanion 8-5
- 3. How to check the IP address of the host PC. 8-7
- 4. How to connect between the PC Expanion and the host PC using network equipment. 8-9
- 5. How to connect the PC Expanion to the host PC directly 8-11
- 6. How to connect to the specific host PC 8-13
- 7. How to connect to the specific host PC automatically 8-16
- 8. How to log in automatically when the PC Expanion connects to the host PC. 8-18
- 9. How to send a message to the connected PC Expanion 8-20
- 10. How to start or stop running the NCT-2000-XP application 8-21
- 11. How to terminate an active PC Expanion. 8-22
- 12. How to see the screen running PC Expanion 8-22
- 13. How to control the running of the PC Expanion by an administrator 8-23
- 14. How to log in to the host PC automatically 8-24
- 15. How to set the timer for a 'system shutdown' message 8-24
- 16. How to enable or disable the function of sending a message 8-25
- 17. How to view and take control of the PC Expanion 8-26
- 18. How to stop the station automatically when the PC Expanion is disconnected 8-26
- 19. How to run both NCT-2000-XP program and an application using Windows RDP 8-27
- 20. How to see the background-bitmaps image of PC Expanion 8-28

21. How to set the password of the NCT-2000-XP program 8-29

22. How to use the USB port in case of L2XX model series 8-29

23. How to change the name of the PC Expanion 8-30

24. How to run a specific program when the PC Expanion connects to the host PC 8-31

25. How to manage grouped PC Expanions under the NCT-2000-XP program 8-34

26. How to manage when a user forgets the password of the NCT-2000-XP program 8-36

27. How to add or remove the serial number of NCT-2000-XP program 8-37

28. How to delete the PC Expanion on the list of NCT-2000-XP console 8-39

29. How to set the resolution and frequency on the PC Expanion 8-40

30. How to set the user ID and the password before the PC Expanion logs in to the host PC 8-42

31. How to uninstall the NCT-2000-XP program 8-44

32. How to assign an USB storage device 8-45

### Part 9 Troubleshooting against an error message

Troubleshooting about an error message that appears on the PC Expanion 9-1 Troubleshooting about an error message that appears on the Host PC 9-3



### Glossary

Regarding PC Expanion A-1

Regarding computer network A-1

FAQ

### Part 1 | Product Features

### What is the PC Expanion<sup>®</sup>?

The PC Expanion is a unique networking device using WoIP(Windows over IP) or LoIP(Linux over IP) networking standards. Users can share the resources of the host PC system by connecting a PC Expanion terminal(s) to it, providing the benefit of having several networked PCs. Users can connect one or more PC Expanion terminals to one host PC directly using a LAN adapter and cable or via the network using a switch/router.

### **Features**

### **Cost Effective**

Save up to 80% of hardware cost versus buying a Pentum4 or equivalent PC; the PC Expanion gives any office or home the ability to expand any existing host PC easily and affordably.

### Compatibility

The PC Expanion will run Windows or Linux based applications on a host PC; applications include Internet browsing, email, office suites, most games and much more.

### **No Maintenance Required**

Maintenance and upgrades only apply to the host PC. The PC Expanion requires no hardware maintenance, only occasional software updates.

### Small sleek design

Space saving design allows more room for your office or desk area.

### Secure and Fast

Our proprietary Terminal Protocol allows for a fast and secure environment using image caching and 128 bit encryption \*No noise output and low power consumption, quiet operations while saving energy costs.

### Note

Depending on the performance of the host PC, an application's compatibility and operating speed can vary. Refer to NComputing's web site for more information.

### **System Minimum Requirement**

### The minimum hardware requirements

To connect one PC EXPANION terminal to a single host PC, the following system requirements apply :

Intel® Pentium® 4 1.3 GHz processor with at least 512 MB RAM or higher.

To connect two to three PC EXPANION terminal(s) to a single host PC, the following system requirements apply :

Intel  $^{\otimes}$  Pentium  $^{\otimes}$  4 2.4 GHz processor with Hyper - Threading technology with at least 512 MB RAM or higher.

To connect four to seven PC EXPANION terminal(s) to a single host PC, the following system requirements apply :

Intel<sup>®</sup> Pentium<sup>®</sup> 4 3.0 GHz processor with Hyper - Threading technology with at least 1024 MB RAM or higher.

To connect eight to ten PC EXPANION terminal(s) to a single host PC, the following system requirements apply:

Intel<sup>®</sup> Pentium<sup>®</sup> 4 3.2 GHz processor with Hyper - Threading technology with at least 2048 MB RAM or higher.

To connect 10-15 PC EXPANION terminal to a single host PC, the following system requirements apply :

Intel® Pentium® 4 or Xeon® 3.0 GHz processor with at least 3 GB RAM or higher.

To connect 16-20 PC EXPANION terminal(s) to a single host PC, the following system requirements apply :

Intel<sup>®</sup> Pentium<sup>®</sup> 4 or Xeon<sup>®</sup> 3.2 GHz processor with Hyper - Threading technology with at least 4 GB RAM or higher.

### To connect 20-25 five PC EXPANION terminal(s) to a single host PC, the following system requirements apply :

Intel<sup>®</sup> Pentium<sup>®</sup> 4 or Xeon<sup>®</sup> 3.4 GHz processor with Hyper - Threading technology with at least 5 GB RAM or higher.

### To connect 26-30 PC EXPANION terminal(s) to a single host PC, the following system requirements apply :

Intel<sup>®</sup> Pentium<sup>®</sup> 4 or Xeon<sup>®</sup> 3.6 GHz processor with Hyper - Threading technology with at least 6 GB RAM or higher.



- Do not use a notebook PC as a host PC. Using notebook PCs causes power management and memory problems. Notebooks use power-saving features and different technologies than a typical desktop PC.
  - We recommend a 60GB and 7200rpm or higher hard disk drive.

# OS (Operating System) and Maximum Connection Limit

- Windows<sup>®</sup> 2000 Professional : 10 units (L200 model does not support this operating system.)
- Windows<sup>®</sup> 2000 Server : 30 units (L200 model does not support this operating system.)
- Windows<sup>®</sup> XP Home Edition : 10 units
- Windows<sup>®</sup> XP Professional : 10 units
- Windows<sup>®</sup> XP Media Center Edition : 10 units
- Windows® Server 2003 (Standard Edition / Enterprise Edition) : 30 units
- Windows® Small Business Server 2003 : 30 units
- Linux\*: 30 units (the USB memory port of L200 model does not support a USB device under Linux.)
- \* Some restrictions apply. See website for details.

### PC Expanion<sup>®</sup> Conceptual Diagram

#### Host PC

Windows<sup>®</sup> 2000 Professional/Server Windows<sup>®</sup> XP Home Edition/Professional/Media Center Edition Windows<sup>®</sup> Server 2003(Standard/Enterprise Edition) Windows<sup>®</sup> Small Business Server 2003 Linux



Maximum number of users can vary depending on host PC configuration, type of OS and administrative settings.

### How to use the PC Expanion

- 1 Install the PC Expanion (Refer to the Quick Installation Guide )
- 2 Install the NCT-2000-XP application on the host PC
- 3 Setup the network configuration
- 4 Turn on the PC Expanion, set up the PC Expanion
- 5 Click the "Connect" button

МЕМО

### Part 2 NCT-2000-XP Installation

### 1 Insert the software installation CD into the CD drive.

Turn on the host PC and insert the Software Installation CD into the CD drive after your computer boots up.

### 2 Click <Install Program> button.

The installation program will start automatically. When the installation screen appears, click "Install Main Program".



### 3 'Preparing to install' message appears.

This means that the program is checking the server to see if it has the latest version.

Installing	NCT-2000-XP [TSK] [V.4.03.058.1]	×
18	Preparing to install	
Cano		)



 Message similar to the one shown here will appear if your Internet is not connected.



If you have Internet connectivity and Windows<sup>®</sup> XP Service pack 2 is installed, a message similar to the one shown below will appear. Click the "Ask Me Later" button.



### 4 The latest NCT-2000-XP program installation

If the server has the latest version, you will be asked if you want to install the latest version as shown on the left below. Click "Yes" if you want to install, or click "No" if you want to install the version on the CD. The new version will be downloaded as shown on the right below when installing. (It is recommended to select "Yes" to install the latest version. The download may take some time depending on the Internet speed)



### 5 Click <Next> button.

The installation program will start automatically. When the installation wizard screen appears, click "Next".



### 6 Click <Next> button.

If you click the <more> button, you will see a notice with the html type.





Please make sure to DISABLE or UNINSTALL any Anti-Virus or Firewall software that may be running in the background. Security software of this type has been tested and known to interfere with the installation and operation of this product.

### 7 Select 'I agree' and then click the <Next> button.

Once the license agreement window appears, check "I agree" and click "Next". If you do not agree with the license agreement, click the "Cancel" button to finish the process. If you would like to print this out, please click "Print."



### 8 Select 'I agree' and then click the <Next> button.

When the NCT-2000-XP-Terms of Use window appears, check "I agree" and click "Next". If you do not want to agree to the license, click "Cancel" to finish the process. If you would like to print this out, please click "Print".



### 9 Click the <Next> button.

Read the contents of the readme file and click "Next". If you would like to print this out, please click "Print".

NCT-2000-XP		
Please read the following tex	e.	2
Use the scroll bar to wiew th	e rest of this test.	04
NCT 2000-XP: Reading life		
2004-11-26, Version: 4.02, Relea	ise: 161 or higher	î
(C) Copyright 2004 by NComputin	g Co. Ltd./Korea and licensors.	
Table of Contents		
1 Welcome		
2. Installation and first Steps		
3. Deinstallation		
<ol> <li>Special Release Notes</li> <li>Limitations and tips</li> </ol>		
o. Direction of the type		
		5
		Print
	(Ba	Next> Cancel

### 10 Click the <Next> button.

Select the installation default folder and click "Next." The "Program Files" folder is the default installation folder.





• If you want to install it in another path, type the path directly or click the <find> button and select the desired folder.



### 11 Click <Next> button.

If the same screen as the one shown on the right appears, select the item that you want to install after confirming the following reference and click "Next."

NCT-200	g NCT-2000-XP [TSK] [V-4.03.072.4] 0 XP Password for Administrator	<u>م</u>
<b>A</b>	Install . Uninstall and Console programs require password pro Without this password, the install procedure cannot continue password now.	Rection to sun. Please enter the
	e NCT-2003-0P Administrator Password: New Password: Jebpe New Password:	
	Network Administrator Cornole	
	< Ba Ned	> Cancel

#### Note

Administrator Password : If you set an administrator password, the Network Administrator Console will require this password to make changes within the console. You should remember the "Administrator Password" for future configuration changes. If you do not remember the password, you can't execute the program or alter management settings.

( If you want to cancel the previous password, refer to "26. How to manage when a user forgets the password of the NCT-2000-XP program" in Part 8.) Network Control Console : A management application that manages local user groups and can also manage individual computers and the connected PC EXPANIONs

### 12 Click the <Next> button.

If you would like to review or change any settings, click "Back". If you are satisfied with the settings, click "Next" to begin copying files.

Installing NCT-2000-XP [TSK] NCT-2000-XP Ready to copy files	(Y.4.03.072.4] X
Setup is now ready to Itype work to review or change any retings, click "Back". Itype are satisfied with the settings, click "Newt" to begin copying lifes.	copy files. Current Setting:

### 13 Installing the NCT-2000-XP program

Refer to the following steps.



Gathering information for troubleshooting help ► Copying files ► Installation of service ► Remote management console installation ► the selected items installation ► Virtual audio device driver installation

### 14 Add user accounts.

When the program installation is completed, the message screen for adding new users will appear.(Refer to the screen) For more details, please refer to "Create a new account" of operating system and "1. How to add new user accounts" in Part 8.

Installin	g NCT-2000-XP [TSK] [V.4.03.072.4]  📓
2	Do you want to add any new users to the system?
	Yes No

### 15 Click the <Restart> button.

When this is completed you will be asked to restart the system (Refer to the following screen). After checking "Yes, I want to restart my computer now," click "Restart" to reboot your computer.



## Part 3 Setting up Network configuration

# Connecting to the network by using a cable or DSL router

You need to configure the network to connect with any PC Expanion terminal(s). To configure your computer's network configurations, please refer to the following :

If you use a Cable/DSL router, you can use dynamic IP addresses. (To use dynamic IP addresses, the router must support DHCP or a dynamic IP address allocation function) If you want to use static IP addresses when using a Cable/DSL router, refer to "Connecting by using a switch."

- 1 Turn on the PC Expanion.
- 2 Click the <Setup> button on the startup screen of the PC Expanion.





3 Select the 'Network' tab. Then Select 'Get Dynamic IP address' and click the <Save> button. (The PC Expanion uses the "Get Dynamic IP address" option as the default. No additional settings are required.)

setwork.	Optons	Password	Update	Misc		
-	mm					
	Get Dynamic F					
	Une Stric P.A					
	IPAddless:					
	Geleway.					
	Address					
	MAC Address:	000F2018D40J				
		b.				
					Save	- Case

4 With the L120 and L200 models, the list of host computers is displayed in the startup screen of the PC Expanion. The other products require using the "Connection to" drop-down list. If the user clicks either <TS Options> within <Setup> or <Options> within <Setup> after selecting "Autodetection," the host computer name is displayed automatically. The name of the host computer will be displayed for up to 8 host computers. Click the <Connect> button. Start using the PC Expanion.





# Connecting by Using a switch (Supports 100Mbps switching)

To connect by using a switch, you need to set a static IP address on both the PC Expanion terminal and the host PC.

To configure an IP address as static, follow these steps :

- 1 Turn on the PC Expanion.
- 2 Click the <Setup> button on the startup screen of the PC Expanion.



- UTMA Options Setup Reset Info Close
- 3 Select the 'Network' tab. Then select 'Use Static IP address' option. Type the IP address and the gateway. And then Click the <Save> button. (If you do not know them, please contact a network administrator.)



4 With the L120 and L200 models, the list of host computers is displayed in the startup screen of the PC Expanion. The other models list the host computers when a user clicks the "Connection to" drop-down list. If the user clicks on either <TS Options> within <Setup> or <Options> within <Setup> after selecting "Autodetection", the host computer name is displayed automatically. Click the <Connect> button. Start using the PC Expanion.





### Part 4 Product Registration

The user must be registered in order to receive continuous support such as upgrades of the application software and after Sales service. The following method can be used for registering the user via the Internet.



The serial number and the activation key of the product, which the user has purchased, must be registered via the Internet or by other means. When you are formatting or modifying the hard disk, or you are replacing the current computer with a new one after registering the serial number, please unregister the serial number and the activation key. Please take note that the serial number and the activation key can be registered up to only 10 times if you fail to unregister the serial number.

1 After clicking on the <Start> button on the Windows login screen, please select the <All Programs ► NCT-2000-XP ► NCT-2000-XP Internet Registration> in order to register.



2 When the message window on the right appears, please input the 'Administrator Password', and then click on the <Next> button. (If the 'Administrator Password' has been registered, please click on the <Next> button after inputting the 'Administrator Password')



Note

• If the 'Disable password protection' was selected during the installation of the application, the message window for the 'Administrator Password' does not appear.

3 Please click on the <Next> button after inputting the correct information in the relevant boxes. For excellent service in the future, please make sure that all the information you provide is accurate.



#### • Personal information protection policy

The NComputing Inc. highly values any personal information which is provided by customers. NComputing Inc. observes the personal information protection provision clause of the "laws related to the use and promotion of information and communication networks" and the "guidelines for personal information protection" which were enacted by the Ministry of Information and Communication of the Korean government. NComputing Inc. informs customers of how and for what purpose personal information provided is used, in accordance with the personal information protection policy of the company. NComputing also informs the customer of what measures have been taken by the company in order to protect the customers' privacy. The personal information that customers provide for registration, is only used for the purpose of updating the software and providing technical support.

- 4 Select the method of registration
  - Online : At present the host PC is connected to the Internet
  - Offline : The host PC is not connected to the internet

### Selecting online Internet registration

This option is only available when the computer, which has the NCT-2000-XP program, is connected to the Internet.

<u>1</u> Please click on the <Next> button after selecting 'On Line - Register by Internet'.



2 Please click on the <Next> button after selecting the serial number.





3 A window for user's information registration appears. Please click on the <Back> button to correct the information, or click on the <Next> button to continue the registration.

Ready to register On-Line Please check your setting to re "Next"	igister il you read	by to register please click
	-Serial Number:	1500022 · not registered
Number(s) to register:	Name :	NCOM
1500022	Company:	NCOMPUTING
"Next"  Aumber(i) to register:  1.5000022  kease check your registration attings.  you are satisfied with the entrgs. cick "New" to begin	Country :	Korea
	Zip :	431-807
sase check your registration	Address:	2nd Floor, Daeyoung Bidg, 1423
Plane sheet as a soluted as	Phone :	82-31-422-5157
sellings,	Fax:	82-31-422-5158
If you are satisfied with the	E-mail :	techsupport@ncomputing.com
settings, click "Next" to begin the registration.	Add. Info	

4 The registration of the serial number starts when all the information has been inputted correctly. Please take note that if the computer is logged off or the Internet is disconnected before the registration is completed, the registration cannot be completed successfully.





# Creating a product registration document in instances where the Internet cannot be used for registration

In instances where the computer with which the NCT-2000-XP software has been registered with is not connected to the Internet, please select the 'Off Line - Register via File/Email' and then create a data file for offline-registration. Please send this file in an email as an attached file to a supplier or an agent who can help you with the registration of the serial number.

Please select the 'Off Line - Register via File/Email, ' and then click on the <Next> button.



**2** Please select the serial number with which you wish to register, and then click on the <Next> button.





3 A window with user's information registration appears. After checking the information with which the user has provided, please click on the <Back> button to correct the information, or click on the <Next> button to continue the registration.

Number[] to register:         - Sead Number 1 50002 - not registered           1.5000022         - Construction           Construction         - Construction           Construction         - Construction           201         - State Number 2           201         - State Number 2
1500022 2 company: NCOMPUTING Courty: Korea Zg: 431-807 Addres: 204 Floor, Deeyoung Bidg, 14
1500022         County:         Korea           Zib:         431-807         Address:         2nd Floor, Deeyoung Bidg, 14
County: Koree Zip: 431-807 Address: 2nd Floor, Deeyoung Bidg, 14
Address: 2nd Floor, Daeyoung Bldg, 14
C2 02 21 422 E1E7
Pease check your registration Phone: 02-019/22-0107
settings, Fax: 82-31-422-5158
f you are satisfied with the E-mail: techsupport@ncomputing.com
settings, click "Next" to begin Add. Info

4 Please select a directory for creating the offline registration file and the name of the file, and then click on the <Next> button. The destination of the storage is <My Documents>and the name of the file is 'RGF serial number.txt.' To change the storage destination please click on the 'Change' button and select a new storage destination.





If you would like to change the path, click the <Change> button.

NCT-2000-XP Internet Registration Program	Save As				?
DIF-Line registration mode This step creates registration lie.	Sa	yn: 🔛 My Docume	ets	○ Ø Ø Ø	3-
Construction     Construction	Hy Rece Dealage My Docare	Ny Videos			
Please click "Next" to create file.	My Conput	File pane:	RGF1500022.6d	~	Save
(Back Next) Cancel	My Network	Save as type:	tet (*.bd)	×	Cancel Help

5 The following message window will appear to inform of the successful completion of the registration. Please send the stored file to the registration center or agent. Please click on the <Finish> button. (Please do not modify the registration file. If the registration file is modified, we cannot register it.)



**6** Please send the file to the registration center or agent. The registration center or agent will send out a text file which can be used for registration of the serial number. This option is used to register the serial number by using a text file.



Note

- If you would like to cancel the registration before receiving the activation key, you can select the "Offline – Cancellation of registration" option and then select the serial number that you would like to cancel. After cancelling the serial number, you cannot use the previous registration file. You must repeat the registration process.
- There will be 2 six-digit numbers, a total of 12 digits, of the approval number in the 'Activate Key' contained in the file with which has been sent out by the registration center or agent. Please select the 'Off Line -Key Input' and then click on the <Next> button.



8 After selecting the corresponding serial number, input the approval number into the 'Activation Key' as seen below, and then click on the <Accept> button. If the correct serial number and the activation key has been submitted, the following message window appears. Please click on the <OK> button, and then click on the <Finish> button.





### Unregistration

After registering the serial number, if you wish to replace the computer which is currently being used with a new computer, or to modify the hard disk, the serial number must be unregistered before cancelling the installation of the NCX-2000-XP program.

### Unregistration of the product via the Internet

This option is used to unregister the corresponding serial number in the instance where the serial number was registered by using the 'On Line - Register by Internet'. If the 'On Line - Register by Internet' option is used for the registration of the serial number, please use the option to unregister the serial number.

1 Please select the 'On Line – Unregister by Internet', and then click on the <Next> button.



2 Please select the serial number with which you wish to unregister, and then click on the <Next> button.



3 A window for the user's registration information appears. Please click on the <Back> button to correct the information, or click on the <Next> button to continue the registration.



4 The registration of the serial number starts when all of the information has been inputted correctly. Please take note that the unregistration cannot be completed successfully if the computer is signed off or if the Internet is disconnected before the registration is completed.



### Cancellation of registration Offline (File/Email)

Serial numbers can be unregistered offline in the same manner that they are registered offline.

1 Please select the 'Off Line -unregister via File/Email' option for unregistration, and then click on the <Next> button.



2 Please select the serial number with which you wish to unregister, and then click on the <Next> button.



3 A window for user's information registration appears. After checking the information with which the user has provided, please click on the <Back> button to correct the information, or click on the <Next> button to continue the registration.

Ready to Unregister off-Line Please check your registration please click "Next"	settings. If you ar	re ready to unregister offline		
	Serial Number:	1500022 · registered		
Number(s) to register:	Name :	NCOM		
1500022	Company:	NCOMPUTING		
	Country :	Korea		
	Zip:	431-807		
×	Address:	2nd Floor, Daeyoung Bidg, 1423		
<b>N 1 1 1 1 1</b>	Phone :	82-31-422-5157		
Please check your registration settings,	Fax:	82-31-422-5158		
If you are satisfied with the settings, click "Next" to begin the registration.	E-mail : Add. Info	techsupport@ncomputing.com		
	< Ba	cl Next> Cancel		

**4** A file creating process is required for the unregistration of the serial number. Please confirm the destination of the storage and the name of the file, and then click on the <Next> button. The storage folder is 'My Documents' and the file name is 'URGF serial number.txt'. If you wish to change the storage location, please click on the 'Change' button to select a new destination.



5 Please send the created file to the registration center or agent. The serial number cannot be used again once the unregistration is completed. Please click on the <Finish> button.



### Note

• If you would like to change the path of where to save the file, click the <change> button.



## Part 5 Updating the NCT-2000-XP application via the Internet

A user who has successfully completed the registration process can update the NCT-2000-XP program by using the following methods.

### Updating with the application installation CD which is included

In order to update the NCT-2000-XP program via the Internet, users must have completed the registration process. Without registration, updating the software will not be possible. User information must be saved temporarily before installing the new version in order to protect the private information of the user and to achieve safe and easy updates . This process is required in order to have a backup in case an unexpected problem occurs while trying to update the program with a new version, so that the system can always return to where it was before.

### Direct Updating via the Internet

This method can be used only when the user registration with the previous version has been completed. (Please refer to "Part 2. NCT-2000-XP Installation")

 Please click on the <Start> button on the Windows logon screen, and then select the <All Programs ► NCT-2000-XP ► NCT-2000-XP Internet Update> in order.



2 Please input the password in the space provided in the 'Enter Password" message window, and then click on the <OK> button. (This 'Enter Password" message window appears only if the administrator password is set during the installation.)



3 In order to continue updating, the <Internet Registration> process must have been completed. If you have already completed the registration process, please click on the <Register later> button to continue the updating process. If you have not yet completed the registration process, please click on the <Register Now> button to complete the <Internet Registration> process and then execute the updating process.



4 Please click on the <Connect> button so that the user can compare the program in the NCT-2000-XP server against the program which has been currently installed.

Note

🗘 NCT-2000-XP - U	Jpdate	🖃 🗆 🔀		
×	Welcome in NCT-2000-XP Update Servic	се С	Connecting	
	NCT-2000XP Venior: 4.03.072 [04-07-2006] Subscription			onto FTP-Server
e se	From To First Installation Version of Product on the FTP-Server	→	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
<b>*</b>	Please click Connect to get product information	Correct	Cancel	]
	Options	Exit		

5 As shown in the picture below, the current version and the latest version on NComputing's Internet Server can be confirmed. If there is a new version on the Internet server, please click on the <Connect> button to start the updating process. The speed of the download varies depending on the speed of the Internet connection.)



♥ If you do not want to install the latest NCT-2000-XP version right now, save the program the file type and click the <Product information> button. Then select the "Save the program in the disk" option. The default folder is the installed NCT-2000-XP folder in the hard disk drive. If you would like to save the file in another folder, please select another folder. When you save the file in another folder, you must move the file to the installed NCT-2000-XP folder in order to run the program.

🔅 NCT-2000-XP - U	pdate		X					
	Welcome in NCT-2000-XP Update Servic Venion of poduct installed on this computer NCT-2000-XP Venion 4.03.058 [28:00-2006] Schoolpton From Ta - Fait Installation Venion of Product on the ETP Server	æ	*		5			
Get room	Velico Visico contra II no cont	DownLoad	Download Mode	Save A				? 🔀
			© Save Update Program on the	Starty The Still Stort	00 lage.dl val.htm leck.dl	T 2000/P HTSATRAN, DVF HTSATRAN, SYS HTSALDCO, SYS HTSBUS, DVF HTSBUS, SYS	HTSCLASS.DLL HTSCHCL.SYS HTSCHCL.DW HTSCHCLU.DW HTSCHCLU.DW HMLOSOFF.ESE HMLOSOFF.ESE HMLOSOFF.ESE	MANUAL EVE MANUELLANC DAL MANUELLANC DAL MANUELLANC DAL MANUELLANC DAL MANUELLANC DAL MANUELLANC DAL MANUELLANC DAL
				File gare Save as		stal end I Files (".")	×	Save Cancel

**6** . When the download is completed, the installation of the program starts in the same way as the 'Installation of the NCX-2000-XP application.'

## Part 6 NCT-2000-XP Remote Management Console

Remote management of the NCT-2000-XP is automatically implemented with the installation. When the installation of the application is completed, the NCT-2000-XP group is automatically created in the program group.

To confirm the installation of the NCT-2000-XP application, please click on the <Start> button in the Windows operating system, and then select the <All Programs ▶ NCT-2000-XP> in order.You also can run the NCT-2000-XP application on the NCT-2000-XP program icon on the taskbar of Windows.



Note

### Functions of the NCT-2000-XP program icon in the taskbar of Windows.

There are some basic functions that can be accessed by rightclicking on the NCX-2000-XP icon which is in the 'Information area' of the taskbar. Here are the differences between options of the host PC and PC Expanion.

NCT-2000-XP Management Console Station Information NCT-2000-XP - Send Message Disable NCT-2000-XP NCT-2000-XP Management Console Station Information NCT-2000-XP - Send Message NCT-2000-XP - Keyboard Settings

<Host computer>

<PC Expanion>

### O Please refer to each option for the function.

NCT-2000-XP Management Console

The option is that the NCT-2000-XP is running.



### **Station Information**

The user can see the user ID, the station information, and the host computer name.



#### NCT-2000-XP – Send Message

The user can send a message to the connected PC Expanion or a specific PC Expanion. For more information, please see "9. How to send a message to the connected PC Expanion." in Part 8.

Send Message ?		Send Message	3
Broadcast Network Broadcast		Broadcast Network Broadcast	
Ta Al Stations	3	Tα Station User	Status
From user1 - 01/05/03 23:04:07	-	From: PHONE CO., HP_Dwner	logged logged
		From user1 - 01/05/03 23:04:40	
Mezzage:		Mezzage	
Press "DK" or "Apply" to send the message		Press "DK" or "Apply"	to send the messe
OK Cancel Arety		OK Can	icel <u>A</u> tbl

### NCT-2000-XP Disable(Enable)

The user can stop running or start the NCT-2000-XP application. For more information, please see "10. How to start or stop running the PC Expanion." in Part 8.

#### keyboard setting

When the user uses the PC Expanion, the user can set the status of 'Num Lock' key or 'Caps Lock' key or 'Scroll Lock' key.

Initial keyboard sl	ate	
V Num-Lock	Cape-Lock	C Scroll-Lock

#### 1 Run the NCT-2000-XP application

To confirm the installation of the NCT-2000-XP application, please click on the <Start> button in the Windows operating system, and then select the <All Programs ► NCT-2000-XP ► in order. You also can run the NCT-2000-XP application on the NCT-2000-XP program icon on the taskbar of Windows.



### 2 Software Settings (Local)

There are items such as 'Sessions', 'Information & Settings' and 'USB-Device Assignment(s) under the 'Software Settings (local)' These option can be used to check the status of the PC Expanion, change options, and assign the USB storage device.



### Note

◆ The 'NCT-2000-XP Management Console' window appears when the <Local Settings> is selected from the menu. After inputting the password, please click on the <OK> button. (If the 'Disable password protection' was selected during the installation of the application, the 'NCT-2000-XP Management Console' does not appear.>

NCT-2000-XP Management Console	
Welcome to NCT-2000-XP Console	OK
Enter Password:	Cancel

### Sessions

The information on the station, which is currently connected, and the standby status of the station for the connection can be viewed when 'Stations' is selected.



### Session #01, #02, #03 ...

The programs and all the information, which are being used by the station that is currently connected, can be checked when the session is selected.



### The following information is the information tab for each session.

- Station names : Displays the number of the selected station. The numbers are provided in the order of the connection to the host computer, which starts from Station #02.
- Logged in use : Displays the name of the user who is logged in on the station.
- Default user : Displays the name of the user who has logged on recently.
- Status : Displays the current connection status of the station.
- Client connection : Displays the automatic launch status of the station which is connected.

- Display Id : Shows the display device of the station which is connected.
- Hardware Id : Displays the virtual hardware of the station which is connected.
- Keyboard Id : Displays the information on the keyboard of the station which is connected.
- Pointer Id : Displays the information on the mouse of the station which is connected.

### Information & Settings

There are four items including 'Product Information', 'License Information', 'System Settings', and 'Serial Numbers' on the Information & Settings menu.



### **Product Information**

Displays the information on the Version String, Build Date, Copyright, Technical Support and Home Page.



### **License Information**

Displays information such as the name of the person who registered the product, company name, Email address and telephone number, which were all inputted during the installation of the product.



### System Settings

Displays the general information on the system.



- Maximum number of stations (incl. Host): Displays the maximum number of stations that can be connected to the host computer.
- Current number of additional stations : Displays the number of users that are connected to the host computer and is currently being used.
- **This machine**: Displays the name of the host computer. The name of the computer can be changed by using the <Computer name> option at the Windows system registration information menu.
- **This user** : Displays the names of the users who have logged on the host computer.
- **System uptime** : Displays the logon period of the host computer's operating system.
- Main Station AutoLogon : Displays an option to automatically start the stations, which are connected to the host computer, at boot-up.

- Delay until shutdown (seconds) : The shutdown time of each station when the host computer shuts down can be set. The range of the input value is from 1 second to 999 seconds.
- Disable Send Broadcast Message : Displays an option that can activate or deactivate the message sending mode for each station.
- Prevent access of the USB-storage devices to the attached terminal.: Displays an option which can activate or deactivate the USB-storage devices.
- Remote View/Control allowed : Displays an option that an administrator can view or control the PC Expanion remotely.
- Clean up disconnected sessions not in use : Display an option that the session can be terminated, if the user does not log on again after disconnecting.
- **Support WTSAPI32 Interface** : A program, which uses the Windows RDP function, can be selected by using this mode. If this feature is enabled, all NComputing protocols are automatically converted to RDP-compatible formats. Use this for Terminal Services Compatibility issues.
- Disable background-bitmaps under Windows XP : Displays an option which can display the background image under the Windows XP operating system.
- Administrator Password : Entering a password to use the NCX-2000-XP program can be activated or deactivated by using this mode. If the user does not wish to have a password, the 'Disable Password Protection' must be selected.

• Autologon on the Host Station : If the user name and password are set, the station can start without the Windows logon screen of the host computer when on.

### **Serial Numbers**

Displays the serial numbers and status of the registration. The serial numbers can be added or deleted by using the right button on the mouse. For more information, please see "27. How to add or remove the serial number of NCT-2000-XP program" in Part 8.



### 3 USB-Storage device Assignment(s)

This menu enables the use of the USB device at each station by setting an option for the USB Device which is connected to the host computer. When the USB device is connected, the user can view the USB device which is connected to the corresponding port.

Ble Action Yerv Help		
+ → 10 10 12 12 12		
UTMAJUTSA-Settings	Name	
E Local Users and Groups (Local)	Standard Enhanced PCI to USB Host Controller	
Local Computer Policy     Software Settings (locab		
E Essions		
* (D) >/-		
USB-Device Assignment(s)		
🔅 🎝 Avalable USB Ports 0H05T	e )	
<ul> <li>Software Settings (LAN)</li> <li>The bar</li> </ul>		
e ve hau		

### 3 Software Settings (LAN)

If the host PCs that the NCT-2000-XP program is installed on are located on the same network, the host PCs are listed in 'Software Settings (LAN).' The user can see the status of a host PC and how many PC Expanions are connected to the host PC. The host computer refers to the computer that the NCT-2000-XP program is installed.



### 4 Hardware Settings (LAN/Local)

The user can set the status of the connected PC Expanions and change the options.

### UTMA/UTSA Devices

Settings for the connected PC Expanions can be changed from the administration console. ("UTMA/UTSA Device" shows information about the PC Expanions connected to the network.) Select the PC Expanion of which the settings are to be changed and click "UTMA/UTSA Device Setup" to change the setting.

5le Action Yerk Belo ♦= → 💽 🔟 🗙 🎒 💽 😰								
UTHALUTSA-Settings = 10 Local Uners and Groups (Local) = 10 Local Computer Policy	UTMAAUTSA Devices List							
Software Settings (local)	List of all UTMA/UTSA devices that are active and not active on the network.							
2 <b>8</b>	UTNA/UTSA Devices:							
a Hardware Settings (LAN(Roca)	<ul> <li>Device Name</li> </ul>	IP Address	IP Type	Static IP	Galennap IP	MAC		
UTMAJUTSA Devices	Device No. 000FE010F0C0	192.168.0.37	dynamic	192 168 0.10	192.168.0.1	000FE010F0C8		
A DENALITSA Dentre Court	L120-11	132,168.0.B	dinanic	192,168,0.13	192,168.0.1	000FE019D414		
	L110-07	192,168.0.14	dimensio	192,168,0.14	192,168.0.1	000FE0D00006		
	L120.04	192.168.0.9	dynamic	192,168,0.110	192.168.0.1	000FE0D00132		
	💭 replus	192.168.0.4	dynamic	192 168 0.114	152.168.0.1	000FE017F367		
	L125-08	192168.0.16	dynamic	192.168.0.3	192.168.0.1	000FE018D411		
	Device No 000FE019140F	192,168.0.38	dynamic	192,168,0.10	192.168.0.1	000FE0191A0F		
	Device No 000FE0183184	192.168.0.221	statio	192 168 0.221	192.168.0.1	000FE0183184		
	see 2	192.168.0.26	dynamic	192,168,10.3	192.168.10.1	000FE0D000F5		
	Device No 000FE0191407	192.168.0.34	dynamic	192,168,0.10	192.168.0.1	000FE0191A07		
	Coet 1	192.168.0.39	dynamic	192.168.0.112	152.168.0.1	000FE000000A		
	- Edike	192.168.0.28	dynamic	192,168,0,125	192.168.0.1	DODFED17E3AE		
	COMMUTER Device Selver		Lee, of UTING BE		These stations	acceant acted to this		

The <Column> option delete displays the various columns. If you click the <Column> button, you can select the column list.

JTMA/UTSA Devices:					Columns.
Device Name	IP Address	IP Type	Static IP	Gateway IP	MAC
Device No 000FE018F0C8	192.168.0.37	dynamic	192.168.0.10	192.168.0.1	000FE018F0C8
L120 - 11	192.168.0.8	dynamic	192.168.0.13	192,168.0.1	000FE018D 414
- EL110 - 07	192.168.0.14	dynamic	192.168.0.14	192.168.0.1	000FE 0D 00006
L120-04	192.168.0.9	dynamic	192.168.0.110	192.168.0.1	000FE0D00132
E neotus	192.168.0.4	dynamic	192.168.0.114	192.168.0.1	000FE017F367
L120-08	192.168.0.16	dynamic	192.168.0.3	192.168.0.1	000FE018D411
Device No 000FE0191A0F	192.168.0.38	dynamic	192.168.0.10	192.168.0.1	000FE0191A0F
Device No 000FE0183184	192.168.0.221	static	192.168.0.221	192.168.0.1	000FE0183184
User2	192.168.0.26	dynamic	192.168.10.3	192.168.10.1	000FE0D000F5
Device No 000FE0191A07	192.168.0.34	dynamic	192.168.0.10	192.168.0.1	000FE0191A07
user1	192.168.0.39	dynamic	192.168.0.112	192.168.0.1	000FE0D00004
duke	192 168.0.28	dynamic	192.168.0.125	192.168.0.1	000FE017E3AE
	*******	1.1	******	*******	

### **Device Information**

The status of the connection and the serial number.



### Firmware

The version, the build number, the schema ID, the device ID, and the boot server of the PC Expanion.



### **Network Settings**

The IP address of the PC Expanion, the status of setting the IP address, gateway, and a MAC address.

Select Counces of columns to show Device for columns to show Trimwase Network Selingar Languid Salvia Connection Adva		AUTSA Berkes List					
	* Stand Users and Decays (Lond)     * Stand Computer Policy     * Stand Computer Policy     * Statuses Settings (Lond)     Let or all UTMS	MA/UTSA devices that i		of active on I	e selució.		Otherro
	Sufficient Settings (LAN)     UTMALITER     UTMALITER     UTMALITER     UTMALITER     Utmalener Settings (LAN)     In     Dense Ma		PAteu	IP Total	Static IP	Games P	MIC
	2 (1990/113/beam 1) 0 (1990/113/beam doug()) 2) 1190/113/beam doug() 2) 1300 2) 1000 2)	10:00FECHFOCE     11     -07     00     1     0     1     0     1     0     1     0     1     0     1     0     0     0     1     0	192,193,1,37 192,193,1,5 192,193,1,9 192,193,1,9 192,193,1,4 192,193,1,9 192,193,1,39		192 198 8 10 192 198 8 10 192 198 8 10 192 198 8 14 192 198 8 118	182.158.01 192.158.01 192.158.01 192.158.01	INFECTION INFECTION INFECTIONS INFECTIONS INFECTIONS INFECTION INFECTION

### **Password Settings**

The status of the password in the setup of the PC Expanion.



### Language

#### Language setup





### Connection

Status of the connection between the PC Expanion and the host PC, the IP address of the host PC, the name of host PC, the user name, and the name of the station.

•


#### Advanced

When the user clicks the <Advanced> button, the user sets the desired columns. When the user clicks the <Move UP>, the column moves up. When the user clicks the <Move Down> button, the column moves down. If the user selects the column and clicks the <Remove> button, the column will not be displayed in the list of UTMA/UTSA Devices.

	Select Columns	
Select Columns Select group of columns to thow Description Network Selergy Description Connection Advanced	Colume. Colume Colum	Move UP Move Down
	OK	Cancel

#### 2 UTMA/UTSA Device Setup

If you would like to change the option of the PC Expanion, please select the PC Expanion and then double-click the preserve icon. Also double-click the name of the PC Expanion. If the PC Expanion is not connected to the host PC or is turned off, you cannot change this option.

Note

 Click the hardware setting (LAN/Local) in the NCT-2000-XP console menu.



Green color icon : Connected to the host PC in the local network.



Blue color icon : Disconnected to the host PC in the local network.



Red color icon : Turned off state, but has been connected to the host PC more than one time.

The color of the icon is not updated in real time. To check the status of each PC Expanion, click the "F5" key or click the "refresh" icon.

UTMA/UTSA Devi	ce Overview		×
Device Informat	ions	-	
Device Name Device Status Seial No	Device No 000FE0191A0F Waiting for connection 1524416	Connection Settings	
Finnware		Settings	
Version Build Number Schena ID Device ID Boot Server	5.4 10158 71 120 ver: xppro.kor.com12	Settings Setting Pacawood and Language Member of Groups	
Network Setting	8	🕰 Uodee	
IP Addess IP Type Static IP Gateway IP MAC	192.168.0.92 dynamic 192.168.0.113 192.168.0.1 000FE0181133	Entwore	
Password Settin	91	5	
Admin Password	Disabled	Pint	
Language			
Language	English		
Connection		> OK	

When the user clicks the "UTMA/UTSA Device Setup" icon, the user can see the settings of the PC Expanion. Please refer to the above picture. If you click the <Print> button, you can see the settings of the PC Expanion. If you would like to reset each option, please refer to the following information.

#### **Connection Settings**

The user can set the IP address of the host PC, the user ID, the password, the option of "Enable Autologon Mode," "Auto-connection" mode, "Automatic Application", and the resolution and the refresh rate. For more information, please see Part 8.



Decktop Size: 1824 x 253 x 16 h

OK. Cancel

#### **Network Settings.**

The user can change the IP address of Station.



#### Setup Password and Language

The user can enable or disable the "Do not use password" option or "Protect BIOS options with password."

	Device No 000FE0191A0F Properties	? 🗙
Change	Device Setup Options	
Connection Settings	Do not use password	
Network	Protect BIOS options with password	
Setup Password and Language		
of Groups	Setup interface language Language: English	
	OK Cancel 2	30PV

#### **Member of Groups**

The user can mange a group of selected PC Expanions. For more information, please see the "25. How to manage when the PC Expanions are grouped under NCT-2000-XP program" in Part 8.



## Part 7 | Using the "Setup"

The PC Expanion allows users to set various settings such as IP settings, host computer to connect to, resolution, etc. Users can set the settings in PC Expanion as well as in the NCT-2000-XP console of a host computer as described in Part 6. This section describes procedures to configure the settings of the PC Expanion. The 'Setup' screen of PC Expanion supports English only.

When the user turns on the PC Expanion, the startup screen appears. The function is the following information.

- Connect : Used to connect to the host PC.
- Sleep : Used in the power save mode.
- Setup : Used to reset the option of the PC Expanion.
- Info : Used to see the information on the PC Expanion.
- Connection to : Used to select the desired PC Expanion. (When the arrow icon is clicked, you can see the host PC.)
- Refresh : The name of connected host computer is updated
- Options : To use "Setup", "Info", "Reset", or "Close."
- Close : Close the window.

 $<\!\!$  Setup> consists of 'Network', 'TS Options' or 'Options', 'Password', 'Update', and 'Misc'

- Network : To set the IP address of the PC Expanion.
- TS Options : To set host computer information to be connected by the PC Expanion and the resolution and user name of the host computer in advance.

- **Password**: To set a password for 'Setup'.
- **Update** : To update the firmware.
- Misc : To calibrate the touch screen or touch pad device.

#### Each the item is described below.

#### Network

You can set the IP address of the PC Expanion. The default setting is 'Obtain an IP address automatically.' This option can be used if a DHCP server is available on your network and an IP address is automatically allocated to the PC Expanion. To set a static IP address manually, select 'Use Static IP address' option and enter an IP address for the PC Expanion and gateway in the 'IP address' and 'Gateway' fields respectively.



#### **Options or TS Options**

You can set the host computer to be connected to the PC Expanion and set the resolution and user name for the host computer. Select 'Autodetection', 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' in the 'TS Options' screen and click the <Enable-Disable> button. It will then be displayed in the <Connection to> list on the PC Expanion initial screen. Select 'Autodetection' to search for host computers in which the NCT-2000-XP program is installed. It will list up to 8 of the computers found and the '\*' symbol appears in front of the host computer names. Select 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' to specify and connect to a computer. If you select 'TS 2' or 'TS 3', 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' will appear without the '\*' symbol. To change the settings for a host computer to be connected, click the <Edit> button.



Connection name TS 2 Server Network Address	O Autoconnect E
Userneme:	Dombin
Programs	
Desktop	
Start following program	
Program	
Folder	
Desktop size	
0 640x400 256 Colors	0 640x480 H9-Color
0 800x600 256 Colors	* 808x600 H9-Color
0 1024x760 256 Colors	1024x768 Hi-Color
<ul> <li>Use 60Hz VSVNC</li> </ul>	O Use 79Hz VSYNC
1200x102416-Color at 63Hz (at	one monitors may not display properly!

- Connection Name : You can enter a host computer name. This name
  - should be different than the name set in the host computer you are using. If you have selected 'Autodetection', you cannot change this field. 'Autodetection' searches for host computers in the network and shows the names set in the computers as they are. However, if you have selected 'TS 2' or 'TS 3', you can rename a computer.
- User Name : You can set a user name that will be used to logon a host computer. If you enter a user name, the name appears in the user name field on the Logon screen.
- **Program** : If you select 'Desktop', you can use the operation system without changing it. If you select 'Start following program', only the specified program will be launched. If you exit the program, you are automatically logged off. For example, if you want to use the Notepad program only, type 'notepad.exe' in the 'Program' field and then the location of the application file in the 'Folder' field such as 'C:\>'.
- Desktop size : You can select the resolution and frequency of your PC Expanion screen. The available resolutions may differ depending on the model. To confirm if a resolution is supported by the monitor before applying it, select a resolution and click the <Mode Test> button. When you logon, a resolution configured here is applied regardless of the resolution you set on Windows after logon.

#### Password

This option allows a user to set a BIOS password for protection. If the user selects the "Protect BIOS options with password" option, the user can set the new password.



#### Update

This is used to update the PC Expanion firmware. Once the NCT-2000-XP application is upgraded, the PC Expanion automatically updates the firmware during a booting sequence. Users do not need to use this option manually.



### Misc

This option is the function for end-users that want to use a touch screen or touch pad device. The option is currently only supported by the L2XX model series. If you want to calibrate the cursor of a touch screen or touch pad, click the <Calibrate> button. And then click the cross in order.





## Part 8 Using the PC Expanion (Advanced)

### 1. How to add a new user account

User accounts personalize Windows for each person who shares a computer. You can choose your own account name, picture, and password, and choose other settings that will apply only to you. A user account gives you a personalized view of your own files, a list of favorite Web sites, and a list of recently visited Web pages. With a user account, documents you create or save are stored in your own My Documents folder, separate from the documents of others who also use the host PC. To help keep your files more secure and to help make sure they remain private, use a password for your user account. You can still mark certain items as shared if you want other people to be able to access them. If you do not use a password for your user account, other people will have access to your account and will be able to see all of your folders and files. If you have a user account and you change the computer settings, such as the type, size, or the screen saver, those settings will apply only to your account. As a user with a computer administrator account, you can create, delete, and change all user accounts on the host PC. You can create as many accounts on the computer as you want, and have full access to all accounts on the computer.

- Administrator : Users with complete and unrestricted access to the computer/domain
- Backup Operators : Backup Operators can override security restrictions for the sole purpose of backing up or restoring files.
- Guests : Guests have the same access as members of the users group by default, except for the guest account which is further restricted.

- Network Configuration Operators : Members in this group can have some administrative privileges to manage configuration of networking features.
- Power Users : Power Users possess most administrative powers with some restrictions. Power Users can run legacy applications in addition to certified applications
- Remote Desktop Users : Members in this group are granted the right to logon remotely
- Replicator : Supports file replication in a domain
- Users : Users are prevented from making accidental or intentional system-wide changes. Users can run certified applications, excluding most legacy applications
- HelpServiceGroup : Help and Support Center

#### Add a user account under Windows 2000 Professional

1 <Start> ▶ <Setup> ▶ <Control Panel> ▶ Double-click <Users & Passwords>



defrere 🖃 Control Panel						. 20
	Accester		-	Attention	<b>*</b>	
Control Panel	Options	Hardware	Programe	Tools	Updates	
Use the settings in Cantral Panel to personalize your computer.	CNE Audo	Udo, Time		Folder Options	Rosta	
Select an item to view its description.	Config	_				
Vindews Update Vindews 2008 Support	۳	- <u></u>	- 99	100		
	Gaming Options	208(F) E-24	Internet Options	Keyboard	Mail	
	õ	<b>_</b>	<b>2</b>		ų,	
	Places	Metwork and Dising Co	NVDDA sview Deskbap Pf	Place and Pladen	Forver Optices	
	4	3	2	0	4	
	Paters	Cotors	Scarrers and Control	Scheduled Toolo	founds and Multimedia	
	- Ę,	2	<b>\</b>			
	20 *	Users and Persynthesis	_			

2 Click the <Add> button.



<u>3</u> Click the <Next> button after typing the user ID, the full name, and the explanation, You must type the same name when you log on. You do not need to type the full name and explanation.



<u>4</u> Enter your password and click the <Next> button. If no password is set, anyone can logon and view and change your personal information and settings. Be sure to set a password.

id New User		×
	Type and confirm a passenoid for this user, <u>Password</u> : <u>Confirm passenoid</u> : To continue, dick Next.	_
	< Back Next >	Cancel

## Note

You can set a password for a user account or change the password of a password-protected account. Double-click <Control Panel> ► <User Accounts and Password>, select a user account and click the <Set Password> button to set or change a password.

Users and Passwords	<u> 1</u> ×
Users Advanced	
P Users must griter a user i	grant or deny users access to your ange passwords and other settings. where and password to use this computer.
Users for this computer:	Graup *
Statematicture	Administrations
CASHET CONST CONST CONST	Users Guests Administrators
	Agé Banove Properties
Pessword for Administrator     To change your pa     Change Paceword	servert, press CD544
[	OK Cancel <u>Assiv</u>

5 Click the <Finish> button after setting the user group. Please select the user group after reading each group's detailed explanation.



## Note

You can reconfigure groups for a user account. Double-click <Control Panel> ► <User Accounts and Password>, select a user account and click the <Properties> button to change the group in the user account.

Users and Passwords		2 ×
Users Advanced		
	<ul> <li>to grant or deny users access to your othange passwords and other settings.</li> <li>er name and password to use this compute</li> </ul>	6
User Name	Group	
Statematory	American	
ASPNET	Users	
Guest	Guests	
Guseri	Administrations	
Luer2	Administrations	1
Pessword for Administra	Add Benove Propert	
Change Passe	and See Essenad	
	OK Cancel	siy.

#### Add new user accounts under Windows XP operating system.

▲ <Start ➤ Control Panel> Double-click <User Accounts> icon.





2 Click "Create a new account"



**3** Type a name for the new account. And then click the <Next> button.



4 Select an account type and click the <Create a new account> button. If you select an account type, you will be able to know the priority of the account type. Windows XP provides 'Computer administrator' and 'Limited' account types.

S) User Accounts		
🔇 Back 💭 👥 Hone		
Learn Mead	Distance unit type Contractional Land With Contract Contract of Contract Management of Contract of Contract of Contract Management of Contract of Contract of Contract of Contract Management of Contract of Co	CERT COMPAGENT AND

The user can only create the administrator and the limited user account under Windows XP Home edition. However, the user can create new user account similar to the Windows 2000 operating system under Windows XP Professional. The following information is for the user to create a new user account under Windows XP Professional.

O<Start ► Control Panel ► Administrative Tools ► Computer Management ► Local users and Groups ► Users> and then doubleclick the user account that you want to create.



Select 'Member Of' and then click the <Add> button.





Click the <Advanced> button.

Select Groups		? 🔀
Select this object type:		
Groups		Dbject Types
Erom this location:		
XPPRO-ENG-COM11		Locations
Enter the object names to select (examples)		
		Check Names
	OK	Cancel

Click the <Find Now> button.



Click the <OK> button after selecting the desired group. When the screen of step 3 appears, click the <OK> button. The user group is set.

Select this object type:	
Groups	Qbject Types
From this location:	
XPPRO-ENG-CON11	Locations.
Common Quesies	
Ngrw: Starts with 👻	
Description: Starts with w	Find No.
	Stop
Non expiring password	
	OK Cancel
Name (KUN) In Folder	
Administratore XPPRD ENG.C	
Guestr XPPBDENGC.	
HelpServices XPPR0-ENG-C	
WNetwork Confi., XPPR0-ENG-C.,	
Power Users XPPR0-ENG-C	
Renote Deck., XPPRO ENG C.,	
Remote Deck., XPPR0 ENG C., Replicator XPPR0 ENG C., Usen XPPR0 ENG C.,	

2. How to check the IP address setting on the PC Expanion

#### How to check the IP address on the PC Expanion.

<u>1</u> Click the <Setup> button or <Setup> of <Options> button of startup screen of PC Expanion.



UTMA Option:	5		
Setup	Reset	Info	Close

#### 2 Select the 'Network' tab.

To use an automatically allocated IP address, select 'Obtain an IP address automatically.' This option is available only when your network provides DHCP functionality. If DHCP is not supported, you have to configure the IP address manually. To setup the IP address manually, select 'Use Static IP address,' enter an IP address in the IP address field, and enter the IP address of a gateway in the Gateway field. For the correct IP address and the IP address of the gateway, ask your computer administrator.



**3** Click the <Info> button or <Info> of <Options> to check the IP address and the gateway of the PC Expanion.

Version: 5.4	, Build: 10196, Date	: 04.07.06(C)
Device Model	1: 00200	
Loaded Schee	a Version: 00002004	
IP Address:	192.168.000.065	
Gatevay:	192.168.000.001	
BAC Address:	000FE018D40A	
SerialNo:	1561643	
Aliant	user3	
Loaded from	Boot-Server: xppro-e	ng-com11
		Close

#### How to check the IP address and the gateway in the NCT-2000-XP program

1 <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► Select the <NCT-2000-XP> ► Select the <NCT-2000-XP Console> ► Select <Hardware Settings (Local/LAN)> ► Select <UTMA/UTSA device>. You can confirm the IP address of the corresponding station in the device list. The view item of the device list is set to 'Network' by default. If this item has been changed, click the <Item> button, select 'Network' and click the <OK> button to confirm the IP address.

Se Action New Help								
> → 🖻 🗷 🗙 🗃 🕃 🔮								
UTMA/UTSA-Settings + Q Local Users and Groups (Local) + Q Local Computer Fairy	UTHRAUTSA Devices List							
Software Settings (local)	List of all UTMA/UTSA devices that are active and not active on the network. UTMA/UTSA Devices Data							
Software Settings (LAN)								
LIPADUTSA Devices	Device Nase	IP Addess	IP Type	Statio IP	GalevstylP	MAC		
x 2 UTPAUTSA Device Group(s)	Device No DOOFEETOFECE	152.168.0.37	dynamic	132168.0.10	192168.0.1	000FE S18FGC8		
a a citaçor secondo a capón	EL120-11	192,168.0.8	dynamic	192,168,0.13	192,168.0.1	000FE018D41		
	EL110-07	192,198.0.14	dynamic	132,168,0.14	192,168,0,1	000FE000000		
	E1120-04	192,193,0.9	dynamic	23216E D 110	132168.0.1	000FE0D0013		
	Conceptus (Conceptus)	152.168.0.4	dynamic	132168.0.114	192168.0.1	000FE017F36		
	<b>E</b> L120.08	192.168.0.16	dynamic	192.168.0.3	192,168.0.1	000FE018D41		
	Device No BOOFED191ADE	192,168.0.38	denetrio	132168.0.10	182168.0.1	000FE0191AB		
	Device No DOOFEETCONS4	192 193.0.221	static	192168.0.221	112160.0.1	000FE010010-		
	Clarge2	152.168.0.26	dynamic	192.168.10.3	192168101	000FE0D000F		
	Device No 000FE0191407	192,198.0.34	denetric	132,168,0.10	192,168.0.1	000FE0191AB		
	Eluce1	192 198.0.29	dynamic	182168.0.112	192168.0.1	000FE 00 0000		
	- Eldés	152 153 0.28	dynamic	132168.0.125	112168.0.1	000703170348		
	UTMALTSA Desice Setue	<u>ک</u>	List of UTM OBS	ulesa.	Ven station	soven ected to this		

2 Select the corresponding PC Expanion and then double-click or click the 'Device Settings' icon.

You can confirm the current IP address and gateway address in the Network Settings field. To change the IP address, click the <Network Settings> button.



3 To use an automatically allocated IP address, select 'Obtain an IP address automatically.' To use a static IP address, select 'Use the following IP address,' enter an IP address and the gateway address. For the IP correct address and the IP address of the gateway necessary for manual setting, ask your computer administrator.

vice No 000FE0191A0F Properties 🛛 👔 🔯	Properties
JTMA Network Setting	UTMA Network Setting
P Address © Get Dynamic IP address	CIP Address
Use Static IP address	Use Dynamic in address     Use Static IP address
IP Adress: 192 . 168 . 0 . 113	IP Adress: 192 . 168 . 0 . 113
Galeway: 192 163 0 1	Gateway: 192 . 168 . 0 . 1
MAC Address MAC address: 000FE0181133	MAC address MAC address: 000FE0181133
OK Cancel Apoly	OK Cancel Apply
<automatic></automatic>	<manual></manual>

4 In order to apply the setting, click the <OK> or <Apply> button. You must restart the PC Expanion in order to apply the setting. Please click the <OK> button.

Sending	)	UTMA/UTSA Devices Management Console
Sending changes to UTMA device Please wat Cancel	<b>→</b>	New settings mus saved successfully!           Please restart UTMA/UTSA device for changes to take effect           Do you want to restart the UTMA/UTSA device Now?           Yos         No

Note If the PC Expanion is currently being connected and used, a warning message appears. To apply the changes, click the <Yes> button. The PC Expanion restarts. However, since the current environment settings are unchanged, you can use your environment settings when you logon with the same user account after restarting.

	v
⚠	Attention: The established session of that device will be disconnected, after ciking: "Yeat" After you reconnect and login, the user will get his session beck. Do you want to reset this device now?
	Yes No

If the PC Expanion is turned off or does not exist in the same subnetwork, an error message appears and the settings will not be changed. In this case, click the <OK> button to cancel the changes.

UTMA/U	ITSA Network Error 🛛 🛛 🛛 🛛 🕅
8	Error 10047 while create network connection! An address incompatible with the requested protocol was used.
	OK

### 3. How to check the IP address of the host PC.

#### How to check the IP address with Windows 2000 operating system.

1 <Start> ▶ <Settings> ▶ <Network and Dial-up connection> ▶ Select 'Local Area Connection' and then double-click it.





3 Select 'Internet Protocol(TCP/IP)' and then click the <Properties> button.



4 To use an automatically allocated IP address, select 'Obtain an IP address automatically.' To use a static IP address, select 'Use the following IP address.' In this case, you must manually enter the IP address, Subnet mask, Default gateway, and Preferred DNS server address. For the information necessary for manual setting, ask your computer administrator.

eneral	Alternate Configur	ation			
this cap	n get IP settings as ability. Otherwise, s ropriate IP settings.	ou need to a			
OB	tein an IP address	automatically			
00	e the following IP a	ddess:			
IP ac	ldress:				
Subr	et mack:				
Dela	ult galeway:				
~ ~	gtain DNS server a				
~	g the following DN	S server adde	03202		
Prefe	ned DNS server:				
Aberr	sale DNS server				
				Adyance	sd
				к с	ance

ou can get IP settings assigne	1 automatical	 	and a	nnate
is capability. Otherwise, you n e appropriate IP settings.				
O Obtain an IP address autor	refically			
Upe the following IP address	11 I			
IP address:				
Sybnet mask:				
Default gateway:				
Ogtain DNS server addres	automatical			
Usg the following DNS ser	er addresses			
Preferred DNS server:				
Alternate DNS server.				
			AQ	anced

#### <Manual Setting>

How to check the IP address of the host PC under Windows XP operating system.

**1** <Start> ► <Control Panel> ► <Network Connection> ► Select 'Local Area Connection' and then double-click.



2 Click the <Properties> button.



3 Select 'Internet Protocol (TCP/IP)' and then click the <Properties> button.



<u>4</u> To use an automatically allocated IP address, select 'Obtain an IP address automatically. To use a static IP address, select 'Use the following IP address.' In this case, you have to enter manually the IP address, Subnet mask, Default gateway, and Preferred DNS server address. For the information necessary for manual setting, ask your computer administrator.

this capability. Otherwise, you n the appropriate IP settings.	eed to ask your network administrator for
Obtain an IP address auto	matically
C up.	
	· · · · · · · ·
Obtain DNS server addre	ss automatically
C Use the following DNS or	rver addresses:

itemet Protocol (TCP/IP) Prop General	erties			<u>?</u> ×
You can get IP settings assigned this capability. Otherwise, you nee the appropriate IP settings.				
C Obtain an IP address autom				
<ul> <li>Uge the following IP address</li> </ul>	·			
[P address:				
Sybnet mask:				
Default gateway:				
C Obtain DNS server address	atométicelo			
⊕ Use the following DNS served     ■	addresses:			
Preferred DNS server	-			
Alternate DNS server:				
			Adyar	ced
		0K		Cancel

<In case of automatic setting>

<In case of manual setting>



The user can check the IP address of the host PC under DOS environment. <Start> ▶ <All Programs> ▶ <Accessory> ▶ <Command Prompt> or <Start> ▶ <Run> ▶ Type 'cmd' and then click the <OK> button. Then type 'ipconfig' command and click the <Enter> key. You can see the IP address of the host PC.



In Windows XP, you can easily confirm the IP address settings with or without opening a DOS command prompt window. In Step 2 of the Settings in Windows XP, if you select the <Support> tab, you can view the current IP address settings.

Internet Protocol (TCP/IP)	
Address Type:	Assigned by DHCP
IP Address:	192.168.0.9
Subnet Mask:	255.255.255.0
Default Gateway:	192.168.0.1
	<u>D</u> etails
Regair	

## 4. How to connect between the PC Expanion and the host PC using network equipment.

#### Connecting to the network using a cable or DSL router (DHCP function of more than 100Mbps with switching )

- 1 Refer to '2. How to check the IP address setting of PC Expanion' in Part 8., Then set the IP address of the PC Expanion.
- 2 To set the IP address of a host computer refer to '3. Setting and Confirming the IP Address of a Host Computer.' The IP address of a host computer and the address of the PC Expanion must be in the same sub-network. This means that the first 3 among the 4 numbers of the IP addresses must be the same. For example, if the IP address of a host computer is 192.168.0.1, then the PC Expanion must have an IP address starting with 192.168.0. If one of the first 3 numbers of the IP addresses is different, they are not in the same sub-network. To connect to a computer outside of the same sub-network, specify a host computer to connect to and refer to '6. Connecting a Specific Host Computer.'
- 3 Click the 'Connection to' arrow in the PC Expanion initial screen and select a host computer from the list. If 'Autodetection' is selected in the <Setup> ▶ <TS Options> of the PC Expanion, up to 8 host computers within the same sub-network of the NCT-2000-XP application will be automatically found and listed. Automatically found host computer names are marked by the '\*' symbol in front of them. If 'Autodetection' is not selected in <Setup> ▶ <TS Options> and only 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' is selected, 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' appears in the list without the '\*' symbol.

#### **4** Click the <Connect> button.





5 When the Windows logon window appears, type the user name and the password.



#### Connecting with a switch (Supports 100Mbps switching)

Setup the IP address of the PC Expanion by referring to '2. Setting and Confirming the IP Address of PC Expanion'. If you are using a switch, you must set up the IP address manually because you cannot use an automatically allocated IP address. For the correct IP address and gateway address, ask your computer administrator.



2 Set the IP address of a host computer by referring to '3. Setting and Confirming the IP Address of a Host Computer.' If you are using a switch, you have to setup the IP address manually because you cannot use an automatically allocated IP address. For the IP address and gateway address, ask your computer administrator. The IP address of a host computer and PC Expanion must be in the same sub-network. This means the first 3 among the 4 numbers of the IP addresses must be the same. For example, if the IP address of a host computer is 192.168.0.1, then the PC Expanion must have an IP addresses is different, they are not in the same sub-network. To connect to a computer not in the same sub-network, specify a host computer and refer to '6. Connecting to a Specified Host Computer.'

Internet Protocol (TCP/IP) Propertie	5				2×
General					
You can get IP settings assigned autor this capability. Otherwise, you need to the appropriate IP settings.	ask yo	yiř ja z nel	our nel Work i	work supports administrator fi	я
- G Uge the following IP address:					- I
JP address:					
Sybriet mask:					
Default gateway.					
C Obtain DNG server address autor					
Use the following DNS server ad	desse	ĸ—			- I
Preferred DNS perver:					
Alternate DNS server:					
				Advanced	
			0K	Ca	loti

- 3 Click the <Connection to> arrow in the PC Expanion initial screen and select a host computer from the list. If 'Autodetection' is selected in the <Setup> ▶ <TS Options> of the PC Expanion, up to 8 host computers within the same sub-network of the NCT-2000-XP application are automatically found and listed. Automatically found host computer names are marked by the '\*' symbol in front of them. If 'Autodetection' is not selected in <Setup> ▶ <TS Options> and only 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' is selected, 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' appears on the list without the '\*' symbol.
- **4** Click the <Connect> button.





**5** When the Windows logon window appears, type the user ID and the password.



## 5. How to connect the PC Expanion to the host PC directly

You can also use the PC Expanion by connecting it to the LAN port of a host computer directly. In this case, you cannot use the Cable supplied with the product. You will need a cross-over LAN cable. If a host computer has one LAN card and the PC Expanion is connected to the LAN card, the computer cannot be connected to the Internet or external networks. In this case, to connect the host computer to the Internet or external networks, install an additional LAN card in the computer and refer to 'When there is more than a LAN'. The LAN card must support 100Mbps or higher.

#### When only one LAN card is plugged in the host PC (more than 100Mbps support)

 After referring to the '2. How to check the IP address setting of PC Expanion' in part 8, please set the IP address of PC Expanion manually.

#### <For example>

Select the 'Use Static IP address' option in the setup menu of the PC Expanion.

IP address column : Type "192.168.010.003"

### Gateway : Type "192.168.010.001"



2 After referring to "3. How to check the IP address setting of the host computer" in part 8, set the IP address of the host PC manually.

#### <For example>

Select the 'Use the following IP address' option.

IP address column :

Type "192.168.010.002"

Subnet Mask:

Type "255.255.255.0" Gateway : Type "192.168.010.001"

neral   ou can get IP settings assigned as		
ou can get IP settings assigned as		
is capability. Otherwise, you need e appropriate IP settings.	to ask your netwo	
<ul> <li>Obtain an IP address automat</li> <li>Use the following IP address:</li> </ul>	icallo	
JP address:		
Sybnet mask:		
Default gateway:		
Sybnet mask: Default gateway:		
Obtain DNS server address ar Usg the following DNS server		
Preferred DNS server:		

3 Click the 'Connection to' arrow in the PC Expanion initial screen and select a host computer from the list. If 'Autodetection' is selected in the <Setup> ► <TS Options> of PC Expanion, up to 8 host computers within the same sub-network of the NCT-2000-XP application are automatically found and listed. However, since there is one connected host computer, only the computer is displayed. An automatically found host computer name is marked by the '\*' symbol in front of it. To connect to a computer without a search operation, set the host computer IP address to the IP address used in Step 2 by referring to '6. How to connect to the Specific host PC.' Click the <Connect> button.





4 When the Windows logon window appears, type the user ID and the password.



#### Two LAN cards are installed in the host PC(more than 100Mbps support)

If two LAN cards are installed in the host computer, you can use one to connect to the PC Expanion and the other to connect to the Internet or external networks. In this case, connect the host computer and the PC Expanion by referring to 'When there is one LAN card' and setup the other LAN card to connect it to the Internet or external networks.

1 <Start> ► <Control Panel> ► <Network Connections> ► Select 'Local Area Connection' and then double-click it.



#### 2 Click the <Properties> button.



3 Select 'Advanced' tab. Check "Allow other network users to connect through this computer's Internet connection" in the Internet Connecting Sharing window and click "OK" button.

veral	Authentication Advanced
Intern	et Connection Firewall
	otect my computer and network by limiting or preventing cess to this computer from the Internet
Learn	more about Internet Connection Firewall
01-	ownection Sharing
	ow other getwork users to connect through this mputer's internet connection
	gw other network users to control or disable the ared internet connection
Learn	more about Internet Connection Sharing.
	not save how to set these properties, use settings

#### 4 Click the <Yes> button.



## 6. How to connect to the specific host PC

1 Click the <Setup> button in the startup screen of the PC Expanion.



2 Select the 'TS Options' tab, select 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' and click the <Enable-Disable> button. Click the <Edit> button and setup host computer information. If 'Autodetection' is selected, up to 8 host computers within the same sub-network of the NCT-2000-XP application are automatically found and listed. Automatically found host computer names are marked by the'\*' symbol in front of them. If 'Autodetection' is not selected and 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' is selected, 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' appears in the list without the '\*' symbol.



3 Enter the IP address of the host computer to connect to the Terminal Server network address field. For the IP address of a host computer, refer to '3. Setting and Confirming the IP Address of a Host Computer.' If the IP address is incorrect, the host computer will not be connected. Click the <OK> button to save the settings and click the <Save> button to exit the settings.

Username	000.000.000	
Desitop		
C Start tollowing program		
Program		
Folder.		
Desistop size		
0 640x400 256 Colors	640x400149-Color	
O 600x600 256 Colers	@ 800x600 Ht-Color	
1024x768 254 Colors	1024k768 HE-Color	
· Use BOHL VSVNC	O Use 79Hz VSVNC	
C 1290-1024 Ht Color at 83Hz (s		

4 Click the <Connection to> arrow in the PC Expanion's initial screen and select a host computer from the list. If 'Autodetection' is not selected and 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' is selected, 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' appears in the list without the '\*' symbol.



5 Click the <Connect> button. When the Windows logon screen appears, type the user ID and the password.



#### How to map the PC Expanion and connect to the host PC under the NCT-2000-XP console

1 <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► Select <NCT-2000-XP Console> in order to run the program. Go to the <Hardware Settings (Local/LAN)> ► <UTMA/UTSA Device>. Select the specific PC Expanion and then double-click it.

De áctim (tev 1980						
> + B) 🗈 🗙 🖶 🕃 😭						
LENALUSA Settings	UTMA/UTIA Devices Lis					
Software Settem Incal	List of all LTMAATLIN devices that	are active and ro	145.9	he network.		
a grown or one local	UTNALCESA Devices					CARV
<ul> <li>hardware Settings 8.4466</li> </ul>	A Intelane	P Address	P for	State P	Gárup P	NAC
CINE/CILDram	CI Jankerto 000FECt9FDCF	132168.6.27	dearic	132165.030	132768.61	000FE019F3D
	CU128-11					000FE0190-45
	- 00,118-07					
	CU 17 21-14		dearic	132166.0110		00870300013
	C rester	122168.04	deanic	132168.0114	132168.61	0007201706
	C 12 21-00	12161176		152166.03	132168.6.1	00072010043
	Serverso confectation	152168.035				ODFECTION AD
	Several confectoria	152168.0.221		152168-0221	152168.0.1	CONFECTION IN
	Con Clark	1521411.35			152168.101	0007533007
	Severals correctionary	152168.8.34			152168.6.1	ODDFECTIONAL
	(Deet)	152168.8.35	dente	192168.6112	132768.8.1	00071/00000
	w Clair	132168.6.28	denterie	110768-0125	110748.61	CONFECT PLAN
	Constitution and	20	accurs H	una.	R Menusterier Control Control	aaan aaan

2 Click the <Connection Settings> icon in the 'UTMA/UTSA Setup view.'

UTMA/UTSA De	vice Overview	
Device Inform	diana	^
Device Name Device Status Serial No	Device No. 008750191487 Visiting for connection 1524415	Durge - Deventer Setroge Mahout
Version Duild Number Scheme ID Denice ID Boot Server	5.4 10728 21 120 vec.spps-karcoart2	Soto Personal and Language
Network Settin	100 100 0 00	PA DAMA
IP Addess IP Type Static IP Gatewap IP MAC	1921102.032 dynamic 1921103.0113 192168.01 009701101133	
Passwood Set	-	
Admin Persivoid	Disabled	in the
Language	Erglith	
Cannection		× (K

3 Select 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' in the connection list and then click the <Apply> button. Click the <Edit> button and view the setup host computer information. If 'Autodetection' is selected, up to 8 host computers within the same sub-network of the NCT-2000-XP application are automatically found and listed.



Input the IP address of the host PC in the "Terminal Server network address" column of the "Edit Connection Profile" window. Then click the <OK> button.

t Convection	Profile					
Connecti	iax TS 2					
Teenisal Server	ontwork address:	192 . 168 .	0.1			
<u>y</u>	(		LIGHT			
Password	t			Enable Autol	egos Node	
Desktap     Start the follo     Pogram     Folder						
	des Mode Settings					
Orektop Size	000 x 500 × 15 bi		Use I	SHEVENC		~
				<u>ar.</u>	] Caro	

5 Click the <OK> button or the <Apply> button in order to save the changed option. The user must restart the PC Expanion. Please click the <OK> button in order to restart the PC Expanion.

Sending		UTMA/UTSA Devices Management Console
Sending changes to UTMA device Please wait Cancel	-	New settings was saved successfully!     Please restart UTMAUTSA device for changes to take effect.     Do you want to restart the UTMAUTSA device Now? <u>Vos</u> 90-



If the PC Expanion is currently being connected and used, a warning message appears. If you click the <Yes> button, the PC Expanion restarts. However, since the current environment settings are unchanged, you can use your environment settings when you logon with the same user account even after restarting.

UTMA/L	ITSA Devices Management Console 🛛 🛛
♪	Attention: The established session of that device will be disconnected, after dicking "Yes" After your connect and login, the user will get his session back. Do you want to reset this device now?
	Yes No

If the PC Expanion is turned off or does not exist in the same subnetwork, the following screen appears and the settings will not be changed. In this case, click the <OK> button to cancel the changes.

UTMA/U	ITSA Network Error 🛛 🛛 🛛
8	Error 10047 while create network connection! An address incompatible with the requested protocol was used.
	(Constant)

**6** Click the <Connect> arrow in the PC Expanion initial screen and select a host computer from the list. If 'Autodetection' is not selected and 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' is selected, 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' appears on the list.





<u>7</u> When the Windows logon window appears, type the user ID and password.



## 7. How to connect to the specific host PC automatically

#### How to configure the PC Expanion.

1 Click the <Setup> button in the startup screen on the PC Expanion.



2 Select the 'TS Options' tab, select 'TS 2' or 'TS 3', click the <Enable-Disable> button and click the <Edit> button. To connect to a specified host computer automatically, there must be one host computer on the <Connection to> list of the PC Expanion initial screen. If 'Autodetection' is selected in the 'TS Options' screen, select 'Autodetection', click the <Enable-Disable> button to unselect the option, and select either 'TS 2' or 'TS 3'.

	and the state		Misc	
Autoder				
	Edt E	oblo		

Type the address that you want to connect to the host PC in the 'Terminal Server network address' column. Then select the 'Autoconnection Enable' option. Refer to '3. How to check the IP address setting of host Computer' in Part 8. regarding the IP address of specific host PC. Click the <OK> button. Then click the <Save> button. The setup procedure is finished.

connection name TI 2	07	Woodenect Exabled
leiver Network Address	000.000.000.000	
Narnona	Domen	
hograms		
Desktop		
C Start following program		
Program.		
Folder-		
lesktop size		
C 440x400 256 Colors	G 640+400 Hil-Color	
0 000x600 256 Coloca	@ 900+600 H#-Cofer	
0 1024x768 256 Colore	102-6/768 Hi-Color	
Use 60Hz VSVNC	O Use 79Hz VSVNO	
O 1280x302416-Color et 63Hz (s		

4 When the PC Expanion is rebooted, the PC Expanion attempts to connect to the specific host PC after a few seconds. If the PC Expanion is connected to the host PC, please check the IP address of the specific host PC in the setup.

#### How to set up under the NCT-2000-XP console

1 <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► Select <NCT-2000-XP Console> in order to run the NCT-2000-XP program. Go to the <Hardware Settings (Local/LAN)> ► Select <UTMA/UTSA Device> and then select the specific PC Expanion in the "UTMA/UTSA list" and double-click it.



2 Click the <Connection Settings> icon in the 'UTMA/UTSA Setup view.'

Device Informa	tions	
Device Name Device Status Selial No Firmware	Device No. 000FE019140F Waiting for connection 1524416	Compton Connection Satings
Version Build Number Schersa ID Device ID Boot Server	5.4 10198 71 120 ver xpprokorcom12	Seting: Setup Pacawood and Language Set Nember of Broups
Network Settin IP Addens IP Type Static IP Gateway IP NAC Passwood Setti	192.168.0.92 dynamic 192.168.0.113 192.168.0.1 192.168.0.1 D00FE0181133	Update Firmage
Admin Password Language	Disabled	Pint .
Connection	English	ок ок

3 Select either 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' from the 'Host Computer List to Connect to,' click the <Apply> button and then click the <Edit> button. To connect to a specified host computer automatically, there must be one host computer in the <Connection to> list on the PC Expanion's initial screen. If 'Autodetection' is selected in the 'Host Computer List to Connect to,' select 'Autodetection' and click the <Enable-Disable> button to unselect the option. Then select either 'TS 2' or 'TS 3'.

Connection Settings	
UTMA-/UTSA Name:	Device No 000FE0191A07
UTMA-/UTSA-Server (	Connection list
2 tion Profile	Edi
Autode ction TS 2 TS 3	Enable
Auto-Connect: Disat	bled 💌

4 Input the IP address of the host PC in the "Terminal Server network address" column of "Edit Connection Profile" window. Then click the <OK> button. Refer to '3. How to check the IP address setting of host PC" in Part 8.

Correction TS 2				
Connection Settings Terminal Server network a	192 168			
Tenna severnevex a	53011: 100 110			
Sec.				
Persword.			Enable Autolog	n Mode
Stat Programs Settings				
<ul> <li>Deixap</li> </ul>				
Start the following prog	an			
Program				
Feider				
UTMA/UTSA Video Mode	Satisse			
Decktop Size: 800 x 60	3 x 16 bit	₩ Use 8	IOH & VSYNC	

5 Select the host PC that the PC Expanion is connected to automatically in the "Auto-Connect" list. Click the <OK> button or the <Apply> button.

Connection Settings	
UTMA-/UTSA Name:	Device No 000FE0191A07
UTMA-/UTSA-Server I	Connection list
Autodetection	FOI
TS 2	Enable
Auto-Connect Disat	bled 💌

**6** In order to save the changed option, the PC Expanion must be restarted. Click the <Yes> button in order to restart the PC Expanion.

Sending		UTMA/UTSA Devices Management Console
Sending changes to UTMA device Please wait Cancel	⇒	New settings was saved successfuly!     Please restart UTMA/UTSA device for changes to take effect.     Do you want to restart the UTMA/UTSA device Now?     Yos Do

## Note

If the PC Expanion is currently being connected and used, a warning message appears. If you click the <Yes> button, the PC Expanion restarts. However, since the current environment settings are unchanged, you can use your environment settings when you logon with the same user account after restarting.



If the PC Expanion is turned off or does not exist in the same subnetwork, the following screen appears and the settings will not be changed. In this case, click the <OK> button to cancel the changes.



<u>Y</u> When the PC Expanion is rebooted, the PC Expanion attempts to connect to the specific host PC after a few seconds. If the PC Expanion is connected to the host PC, please check the IP address of the specific host PC in the setup.

## 8. How to log in automatically when the PC Expanion connects to the host PC.

1 PC Expanion users can log in from the host PC. <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► Select <NCT-2000-XP Console> in order to run the NCT-2000-XP program. Go to <Hardware Settings (Local/LAN)> ► Select <UTMA/UTSA Device> and then select the specific PC Expanion. Then double-click it.

C Network UTMAJUTSA Settlags						- 0	
() 슈크는 것은 10년 ()							
INTERNATION CONTRACTS     INTERNATION     INTERNATION     INTERNATION     INTERNATION     INTERNATION     INTERNATION     INTERNATION     INTERNATION	UTMANTSA Devices Lite		of active on I	he tobucili.		Colume.	
- rischoore bettros LANkas	A Device Name	ID E Marci	IP Total	Challe 10	Gamma P	MAC:	
UMMANA General Gen	Concerting	102:500127 102:50015 102:50015 102:50014 102:50014 102:500120 100:5000000000000000000000000000000000	drami dramit dramit dramit dramit dramit dramit dramit dramit dramit dramit	102.108.8.10 102.108.8.10 102.108.8.10 102.008.8.10 102.008.8.10 102.008.8.10 102.008.8.00 102.008.8.00 102.008.8.10 102.008.10 102.008.10 102.008.108.10 102.008.108.10 102.008.108.108.108.108.108.10	182 1980 01 192 1980 01	BUFECH FOCE SUPECHENIA BUFECHENIA BUFECHENIA SUPEC	

2 Click the <Connection Settings> icon in the 'UTMA/UTSA Setup view'.



3 Select the host PC that is connected to the PC Expanion in the "UTMA/UTSA-Server Connection list" and then click the <Edit> button.

onnection Settings			
UTMA-/UTSA Name:	Device No. 000P	E0191A0F	
UTMA-/UTSA-Server	Connection list	-	
Connection Profile		Edit	N
Autodetection			И
TS 2		Disable	
Auto-Connect: Disa	oled	*	
0	Canc	el époly	

Note

4 Select 'Use auto logon' in the 'Connection Information Settings' screen. Be sure to enter your 'User Name' and 'Password' and click the <OK> button. The Auto Logon function is only allowed on the NCT-2000-XP console because the password is saved in the user personal profile managed by the host computer and the PC Expanion cannot manage this information. Therefore, this function setting is allowed on a host computer.



<u>5</u> In order to save the changed option, the PC Expanion must be restarted. Click the <Yes> button in order to restart the PC Expanion.

Sending	•	UTMA/U	JTSA Devices Management Console
			New settings was saved successfully!
	Sending changes to UTMA device	-	Please restart UTMA/UTSA device for changes to take effect.
	Please wait		Do you want to restart the UTMA/UTSA device Now?
	Cancel		Yes No

If the user uses the specific PC Expanion, the right figure appears like as the right window. If when the user clicks the <Yes> button, the PC Expanion will be restarted. However the present environment is saved. Therefore if the same user logs on again, the environment will be loaded.

UTMA/L	JTSA Devices Management Console
⚠	Attention: The established session of that device will be disconnected, device data; reprint end upp, the user will get her session lack. Do you want to reset this device now?

If the specific PC Expanion is turned off or there is no the PC Expanion on the network, the follwing image will appear. Click the <OK> button.

UTMA/U	ITSA Network Error 🛛 🛛 🛛
8	Error 10047 while create network connection! An address incompatible with the requested protocol was used.
	<u> </u>

- **6** Select the specific host PC in the connection list on the startup screen of the PC Expanion. If the 'Autodetection' is disabled and 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' is enabled, 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' will be displayed in the connection list.
- **7** Click the <Connect> button.





9. How to send a message to the connected PC Expanion

There are two methods available to send a message.

Send a message using "NCT-2000-XP-Send Message" option in the pop-up menu of NCT-2000-XP icon on the taskbar.

1 Move the mouse point to the NCT-2000-XP icon on the task bar of Windows. Then click the right mouse button. Select the 'NCT-2000-XP – Send Message'



2 A user can send a message from the PC Expanion to other PC Expanion or to other PC Expanion of different host PC. Select <Send Message> to send a message to the PC Expanion connected to the same host computer. To send a message to another host computer or the PC Expanion connected to another host computer, select <Transmit Message> and select a destination PC Expanion. Type your message in the 'Message' field and click the <OK> or <Apply> button.

2 🔀		Send Messa	29			?
work Broadcast		Broadcast	Network Broadcast			
M Stations		Τα	Station	User	Status	^
		From	XPHOME-CO		logged logged	~
			(c)			
	_		From user1 - 01/05/	03 23:04:40		_
		Nessor	-			_
			E			
Press "OK" or "Apply" to send the message.			Press 10	K" or "Apply" to a	end the mes	1092
OK Cancel Archy			0K	Cancel	Ar	olu.
		<b>336600</b> 10m und - 60/550 2266€ Pess 10C° a 7656 <sup>4</sup> to and far nessogn	Al Statement	Bibliote         To         Soften           transmitted         To         Soften           transmitted         Provided Co.         Provided Co.           Provided Co.         Provided Co.         Provided Co.	# State         ■           tm uset -0:05/02/26/02         ■           Pass '00" is 's/05/02/26/02         ■	Al Statem  T   T  T  T  T  T  T  T  T  T  T  T  T

#### How to send a message in the NCT-2000-XP console

The user can send a message in the NCT-2000-XP console. Go to <Start> > <All Programs> > > <NCT-2000-XP> > > <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Go to <Software Settings (local)> > > <Sessions> Then select the station that you want to send a message to. If you select a Station and right-click, a pop-up menu appears. Select 'Transmit Message' from the pop-up menu or select the 'Transmit Message' button at the top of the screen to transmit a message to a selected PC Expanion. On the NCT-2000-XP console, you can transmit a message to one selected Station only. Transmitting a message on the NCT-2000-XP console requires Computer Administrator user privilege.

Image: The second sec		
Barrier Market Schull (1990)         Minimum Schull (1990)         Minimum Schull (1990)           Schull (1990)         Schull (1990)         Schull (1990)         Schull (1990)           Schull (1990)	Aminaton instant information	
	Taken         Taken           Datason mare         Sealan 401           Output In Josep         Sealan 401	

## 10. How to start or stop running the NCT-2000-XP application

After installing the NCT-2000-XP application, whenever the host PC is rebooted, the NCT-2000-XP program will run automatically. If the NCT-2000-XP application is disabled, the PC Expanion cannot connect to the host PC.

1 Move the mouse point to the NCT-2000-XP icon on the taskbar of Windows. Then click the right mouse button. Then select the 'NCT-2000-XP disable.'



**2** The host PC rebooting message window will appear. If you want to apply this option, the host PC must be rebooted.



3 When the host PC is rebooted, a window appears with the disabled NCT-2000-XP application. The window asks whether you would like to use the NCT-2000-XP program again or not. If you would like to the NCT-2000-XP program to be enabled again, click the <Yes> button. If you would like the NCT-2000-XP to be disabled, click the <No> button. If the <Yes> button is clicked, the host PC reboot message appears. In order to enable the NCT-2000-XP program, the host PC has to be rebooted.



If the NCT-2000-XP is disabled after booting the host PC, please move the mouse cursor to the NCT-2000-XP icon on the Windows taskbar. Then click the right mouse button and select the 'Enable NCT-2000-XP now'. The host PC must be rebooted in order to apply the option.

### 11. How to terminate an active PC Expanion.

The user can terminate the PC Expanion that is presently connected to the host PC.

- I Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Go to <Software Settings (local)> ► Select <Sessions> and then select the PC Expanion that you want to terminate.
- 2 When the user clicks the right mouse button after selecting the correct station, the user will see the 'Stop Station' option of pop-up menu. Select 'Stop Station' menu or click the 'Stop Station' button in the menu bar. The PC Expanion will be terminated by force.



3 A confirmation message will appear before a Station is shut down. To exit a Station forcibly, click the <Yes> button. When this is done, the Station is immediately terminated without further warning messages. Note that a user cannot save data when a Station is forcibly terminated.



## 12. How to see the screen of a running PC Expanion

The user can see the screen of a PC Expanion that is connected to a host PC.

- 1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Go to <Software Settings (local)> ► Select the <Session> and then select the PC Expanion that you would like to view.
- When the user clicks the right mouse button after selecting the station, the 'View station' option in the pop-up menu appear.
   Select the 'View station' or click the 'View Screen' button in order to see the screen of a PC Expansion.

Ne Action View Help			
* + 🖲 🗃 🚼 😅 🖘 🔤	0		
Instant Server     Serverse     Servers	Application loaded Infom Manue Sation name Lopped in user Default user Satur Pert connection Saty SJ H brave SJ H brave SJ	dan j da da j da da j da da j da da j da da da da da da da da da da da da da da d	

**3** The station screen appears where the user can set the resolution and color depth on the PC Expanion.



4 To view a station screen, go to in the "UTMA/UTSA Devices list" window. Go to <Start> ▶ <All Programs> ▶ <NCT-2000-XP> ▶ <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Select <Hardware Settings (Local/LAN)> ▶ <Device>, select the corresponding PC Expanion from the device list and then click <View User Screen view> at the bottom of the screen.

Ele & daton yew yebs co → So 150 × 480 [?] (?)						
UTMA/UTSA-Settings + Cocal Users and Groups (Local) + Cocal Computer Policy + Software Settings (Local) + Software Settings (LAN)	UTMANUTSA Devidee List Uik of al UTMANUTSA devidee that we active and not active on the network. UMANUTSA devices: Colonna. Colonna.					
<ul> <li>Hardware Settings (LAN(local)</li> <li>UIPMA/LITS&amp; Devices</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Device Name</li> </ul>	P A63100	Pipe	Static IP	Galevsty IP	MAC
<ul> <li>UTPACUTSA Devices</li> <li>UTPACUTSA Device Group(s)</li> </ul>	Centoe No 000/E018/008	132.168.0.37	dynamic	152 168.0.10	152,168.0.1	000FE018F0C8
(C & CIPH(DISA Device (2000))	EL129 - 11	192,168.0.8	dynamic	192,168.0.13	192,168.0.1	000FE018D414
	EUL113-07	132,168,0.14	6.eanic	192,168.0.14	192,168.0.1	000FE000000E
	EJL129-54	132168.0.9	dynamic	152.168.0.110	192,168.0.1	000FE0000132
	C neolus	192.168.0.4	dynamic	152.168.0.114	152.168.0.1	000FE017F367
	CIL129-08	192.168.0.16	dynamic	192,168.0.3	192,168.0.1	000FE018D411
	Cevice No 000FE0191A0F	132,168,0.28	dyranic.	192,168,0,10	192,168,0,1	000FE0191A0F
	EDevice No 000FE01E3104	192.168.0.221	static	152 168 0.221	192,160.0.1	000FE0103104
	Smarl 2	192.168.0.26	dramic.	152,168,10,3	152,168,10,1	000FE0D000F5
	Cevice No 000FE0151407	192,168,0.34	direnic.	192,168.0.10	192,168.0.1	000FE0191A07
	Buet	192 168 0 29	dynamic.	152168.0.112	152,168.0.1	000FE0000000
	u Edda	132.168.0.28	dynamic	152 168.0.125	152,168.0.1	000700170348
	- en			********	100.000.01	
	UTHAUTSA Device Setue		List of UTHS	AUTSA C	View station	screen ected to this.

## 13. How to control a running PC Expanion by the administrator

The administrator can control a PC Expanion that is connected to the host PC remotely.

- <u>1</u> After referring to '12. How to see the screen of running PC Expanion' in Part 8, run the "View station" option.
- **2** When the screen of the station displays, move the mouse point to the title bar of window.

Then click the right mouse button. Two options are displayed:

- Controlled By TS Admin : If this option is selected, an administrator can control the PC Expanion remotely.
- User Input Allowed : This option is selected by default. If this option is selected, you can use a keyboard and mouse on the PC Expanion. If this option is unselected, a user cannot use a keyboard and mouse but can only view the screen.



If the user selects the option above, it is difficult to use the keyboard and the mouse because both the user's keyboard/mouse and the administrator's keyboard/ mouse are given equal access to operate simultaneously.

### 14. How to log in to the host PC automatically

The PC Expanion provides a mechanism for automatically logging on a host computer without entering a user name and password.

1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Go to <Software Settings (local)> ► <Information & Settings> ► Select <System Settings> and then double-click the 'Autologon on the host Station' on the right side of the window.

(in Atton Sev (sip (n → (1) 12 12 12		
Charles Antarge Concernent Party Concernent Party Concernent Party Concernent Party Concernent Party Concernent Party Concernent	Der Berlans stade unf dass bei keil Der Bestanden Der Bestanden	Jacobies Control (1997) 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 10

2 Check the "Enable Autologon Mode on Main Station' option. Then type the user ID and the password. Click the <OK> button or <Apply> button. The PC Expanion is logged on the host PC with the user ID and the password automatically.

Autologon on the H	ost Station Properties 🛛 🔹 🔀
Autologon mode on Ma	in Station
User Name:	ogon Mode on Man Station
Password	OK Cancel Apply

# 15. How to set the timer for a 'system shutdown' message

If a user shuts down a host computer while a PC Expanion is connected to it, a message appears informing the PC Expanion user of the shutdown. This is to enable a PC Expanion user to save his data when an administrator shuts down or restarts a host computer. To save the current work, a PC Expanion user must click the <Cancel> button, save his data and then click <Logoff>. If there is no data to be saved, click the <Logoff> button to terminate the connection and allow the shutdown or restart of the host computer. Click the <Cancel> button to cancel the shutdown or restart of the host computer.

In this case, the message shown below appears on the host computer. To shutdown and restart the host computer regardless of the currently connected user, click the <Restart Now> button. To cancel the shutdown or restart, click the <Cancel> button.

	Please wait until t active	he system has closed al workplaces!
Shu	itdown Now	Cancel

1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Go to <Software Settings (local)> ► <Information and Settings> ► Select the <System Settings> and then double-click the "Delay until shutdown (seconds)" option on the right.



2 Set the time. Then click <OK> button or <Apply> button. The range of timing is from 1 until 999 seconds.

Delay unti	l shutdown (seconds) Properties 🛛 👔 🔯
Setting	
Name:	Delay until shutdown (seconds)
Value:	30
	OK Cancel Apply

## Note

When a host computer is shutdown or restarted, and if a PC Expanion user selects the <Cancel> button, the host computer will not be shutdown. A the message will appear saying that a station user canceled the shutdown.

NCT-2000-XP Exit Windows	
Flease close al your applicational You have 0 minutes and 28 seconds before the worksplace with down automatically	NCT-2000-XP Message × Station 4 aborted shut down process.
Log Off Cancel	<u> </u>

# 16. How to enable or disable the function of sending a message

Please refer to '9. How to send a message to the connected PC Expanion' in Part 8.

1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000 -XP Console>. Go to <Software Settings (local)> ► <Information and Settings> ► Select <System Settings> and then double-click the 'Disable Send Broadcast Message ' option on the right.

Ele átion you telp te → R1 TR EL 19		
Construction of the second secon	Data Determination of adaptive bin, final Determination of adaptive Determination of adaptive Determination of adaptive Determination of a second	Veter II II SHOOPSOCOMI SHOOPSOCOMI Leg, Share, II mades, II sounds Mo No No No No No No No No No N
	c .	

2 To use the Transmit Message function, select 'Users can transmit a notification message.' In order not to use the Transmit Message function, select 'Users cannot transmit a notification message'. Click the <OK> or <Apply> button to apply the settings. This setting does not control the NCT-2000-XP console function, but rather the Transmit Message function that is available when you click the NCT-2000-XP shortcut icon on the Desktop notification area.

)isable S	end Broadcast Message Properties	?
Setting		
Name:	Disable Send Broadcast Message	
Value:	User can send broadcast message	-
	User can send broadcast message User can't send broadcast message	
	OK Cancel	Apply

### 17. How to view and control a PC Expanion

Please refer to '12. How to see the screen of a running PC Expanion' and '13. How to control the running of a PC Expanion by an administrator' in Part 8 regarding the function of viewing the PC Expanion and controlling the PC Expanion remotely.

1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Go to <Software Settings (local)> ► <Information and Settings> ► Select <System Settings> and then double-click the 'Remote View/Control allowed' option on the right.

Elle Atten Sev Help		
+ → 🕲 🗷 🗛 😭		
Charles Servery     Construction     Construction	The second secon	Read  0  0  1  1  1  1  1  1  1  1  1  1

2 If you would like enable the function, select "Yes" Otherwise select "No." Then click <OK> button or <Apply> button in order to apply the function.

Remote Vi	ew/Control allowed. Properties 🔹 👔 🔀
Setting	
Name:	Remote View/Control allowed.
Value:	Yes 💌
	Tes
	OK Cancel Apply

## 18. How to stop a station automatically when the PC Expanion is disconnected.

A PC Expanion session continues to run if a user turns the PC Expanion off without selecting 'Disconnect' or without logging off of the connection. An NCT-2000-XP console will represent this status as 'Disconnected'. If this status continues for a long period of time, it wastes the host computer's resources and it may cause some difficulties for other users. Select the 'Auto stop 'Disconnected' stations' option, to save system resources even if the connection is unexpectedly disconnected.

1 Go to <Start> ▶ <All Programs> ▶ <NCT-2000-XP> ▶ <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Go to <Software Settings (local)> ▶ <Information & Settings> ▶ Select <System Settings> and then double-click the 'Clean up disconnection sessions not in use' option on the right.

Eile Action Bev Belp		
• → 🕲 🗷 🖳 😭		
Christian School (Columnian)     Columnian Columnian)     Columnian     Columnian	National Control of Mathematica Table (1997) Control and Mathematica Table (1997) De Tables and Mathematica Tables (1997) De Tables and Mathematica Tables (1997) De Tables and Mathematica Tables (1997) De	Tead

2 Type a numeric character. The range is from 0 to 999 minutes. In order to stop a 'connected' PC Expanion automatically, set this value to '0'. When the period of time passes since PC Expanion enters 'Disconnected' status, the 'Disconnected' PC Expanion will be forcibly terminated.



## 19. How to run both NCT-2000-XP program and an application using Windows RDP

Remote Desktop Protocol (RDP) is a multi-channel protocol that allows a user to connect to a computer running Microsoft Terminal Services. If an application using RDP does not run properly after installing the NCT-2000-XP application, choose the 'Support WTSAPI32 Interface' option. The application should begin to run properly. 'WTSAPI' stands for Windows Terminal Server Application Interface for NT compatible system.

1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Go to <Software Settings (local)> ► <Information & Settings> ► Select <System Settings> and then double-click the 'Support WTSAPI32 Interface' option on the right.

(in Atton Sev (sip (n → (1) 12 12 12		
Chefring Andrews     Construction     Construction	The answer of the second secon	(no.      10     1

2 Select the 'Yes, WTSAPI32 interface is Enabled' option. Then click the <OK> button or <Apply> button.



## 20. How to view the background-bitmaps image of a PC Expanion

When NCT-2000-XP program is installed on a host computer and you are using a PC Expanion to connect to the host computer, the background image appears only once when a connection has been established for the first time with the host computer. The background image appears only while you are creating a personal profile. If you connect to the host computer again after the personal profile is created, NCT-2000-XP does not send the background image to the PC Expanion according to the personal profile settings.

1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000-XP</li>
 Console>. Go to <Software Settings (local)> ► <Information & Settings>
 ► Select <System Settings> and then double-click the 'Disable background-bitmaps under Windows XP' option on the right.

Ble Action Yew Help		
⇔ → 🗈 🖬 🔩 🛃		
UTHENTISA Sampy Compare Tables (Compare Faller) Compare Faller Sources (Compare Faller) Sources (Compare Faller) Sources (Compare Faller) Compare Faller Compare Faller	The second secon	Value 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
	6	

2 If you would like to display the background-bitmaps image, select "Wallpaper bitmap will be shown." If you do not want to display the background-bitmaps image, select "Wallpaper bitmap will not be shown." Then click the <OK> button or <Apply> button.

Disable ba	ckground-bitmaps under Windows XP 👔 🔀
Setting	
Name:	Disable background-bitmaps under Windows XP
Value:	Wallpaper bitmap will not be shown Wallpaper bitmap will be shown Wallpaper bitmap will not be shown
	OK Cancel Apply

## 21. How to set the password of the NCT-2000-XP program

Be sure to set your password to prevent anyone other than an administrator from changing the NCT-2000-XP console settings. You can set a password when you install the NCT-2000-XP application. To set a password when you install the program, enter a password in the 'New Password' and 'Confirm Password' and click the <Next> button instead of selecting 'Do not set administrator password.'

1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Go to <Software Settings (local)> ► <Information & Settings> ► Select <System Settings> and then double-click the 'Administrator Password' option on the right.

Ein Atton gev Bep		
+ → <a>8</a> <a>8</a> <a>8</a>		
Charlense Angereinen     Constant Angereinen	ter. Construction of a set of a set of the	2023 203 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20
	K	

2 If 'Disable password protection' is checked, uncheck the option. Type new password in the 'Password' and 'Retype Password' column. Then click the <Change Password> button. Click the <OK> button or <Apply> button.



# 22. How to use the USB port in case of L2XX model series

A user can set a USB storage device connected to a host computer so that a specific PC Expanion can access it. The L200 model provides a USB port so that a USB device can be connected to it directly. A USB storage device directly connected to the L200 is not accessible by a user using another PC Expanion. Only a user using the L200 can access a USB storage device directly connected.



\* The USB port on the L200 model does not support the USB device or USB storage device or USB printer under Linux.

### 23. How to change the name of a PC Expanion

The name of a PC Expanion is displayed in the 'Alias' field of the "UTMA Info" window when the user clicks the <Info> button.

The name of a PC Expanion can only be changed in the NCT-2000-XP console.

1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000-XP> Console>. Go to <Hardware Settings (LAN/Local)> ► Select <UTMA/UTSA Devices> and then double-click the PC Expanion that you would like to change the name of.



2 Click the <Connection Settings> in the "UTMA/UTSA Device Overview" window. 'UTMA-/UTSA Name' is the name of the PC Expanion. Type new name for the PC Expanion.

Device Inform	ations	<u>^</u>		
Device Name Device Status Serial No Firmware	Device No. 000/E01514/dF Walking for connection 1524416		Change Connection Settings	
Vesion Build Number Schema ID Davica ID Boot Server Network Settin IP Actions	5.4 10138 71 120 we approforcent2 192 101 0 12		Setur Setur Present and Language Wentor of Gouge	-
IP Type Static IP Balarway IP MAC	dynamic 192-168.0.113 192-168.0.1 000#60161123			ŗ
Password Sett			Sh an	
Admin Password	Disabled		A Piri	
Language Connection	English		05	

onnection Settings	
UTMA-/UTSA Name Device No	000FE0191A0F
UTMA-/UTSA-Server Connection	ist.
Connection Profile	Edit
Autodetection	
TS 2	Dicable
Auto-Connect Disabled	~
Auto-Connect: Disabled	*

3 In order to save the changed option, the PC Expanion must be restarted. Click the <Yes> button in order to restart the PC Expanion.

Sending	UTMA/UTSA Devices Management Console	
Sending changes to UTMA device Please wat Cancel	Now settings was sined successfully! Reser restart UTMA/UTSA device for charges to take effect Do you want to restart the UTMA/UTSA device Now? <u>Yes</u> <u>Bo</u>	



If the user uses the specific PC Expanion, the following message will appear. Click the <Yes> button and the PC Expanion will be restarted.

1	Attention: The established session of that device will be disconnected after disking "Yes" After you reconnect and login, the user will get his session back.
	Do you want to reset this device now?

If the specific PC Expanion is turned off or if the PC Expanion is not on the network, the following image appears. Then the user cannot change the option. Click the <OK> button.



4 The changed name of the PC Expanion is applied in the NCT-2000-XP console and in the "UTMA Info" window of the PC Expanion.



## 24. How to run the specific program when the PC Expanion connects to the host PC

You can set a PC Expanion so that it can run only one program. So, if a PC Expanion user exits the program, the user is automatically logged off and cannot use any other program than the one specified.

#### How to set under the PC Expanion

1 Click the <Setup> button in the startup screen of the PC Expanion.

Reset

Info Close



2 Select 'TS Options' tab on the terminal server of the connection list. Then click the <Enable-Disable> button. Click the <Edit> button in order to set the information of the host PC.



3 Select 'Start following program' Then type the file name in the 'Program' column. And type the folder name for the path to the executable file in the 'Folder' column. For example, if you want to run the notepad program automatically, type the following information; program: Notepad.exe, Folder: C:\Windows. Then click the <OK> button and <Save> button.

User name:	0	000.000.000.000		
Programa				
C Desktop				
Start following prog	an.			
Program Mocepa	d.exe			
Folder CINWIN	dawa]			
Desktop size				
O 640x480 256 C	locs	640x400 HI-Color		
0 000x600.256 C	locs q	800x600 HIFColor		
0 1024x768 256 0		1024x768 HI-Color		
· Use 60Hz VSVA		Use 79Hz VSVI	KC .	
0 1260x1024 HI-Color	at 63Hz (some	notitors may not disp	lay property)	

#### **4** Click the <Connect> button.




5 When the Windows logon window appears, type the user ID and the password. Then click <OK> button. The application should now run automatically. If the set application is terminated, the PC Expanion is logged off automatically.



#### How to set the NCT-2000-XP Console

1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP > ► <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Go to <Hardware Settings (Local/LAN)> ► Select <UTMA/UTSA Devices> and then double-click the desired PC Expanion.

5e Acton 3ev 8eb ≥ → 🕒 🖼 🗙 🎒 🕃 😭						
UTMA(UTSA-Settings	UTHAAUTSA Devices Lis	ıt				
Local Computer Folicy Software Settings (local)	List of all UTMA/UTSA devices that	are active and re	A active on t	he network.		
Software Setongs (Icca)	UTMA/UTSA Devices					Columna.
and a settings (L4Nacco	A Device Name	IP Address	IP Type	Static IP	GatevoorIP	MAC
UTMA UTSA Devices	EDwice No. BOOFF DISEDCR.	192 198 0 37	devenic	182168.010	182168.01	000660186003
UTNA UTSA Device Group	EL120-11	192,193,0,0	dinatic	192168.013	112168.0.1	000FE010D-414
	EL110-07	152,168,0,14	dinanic	132168.0.14	192,168,0,1	000FE00 0000E
	U120.04	192,168.0.9	dimenic	192,168,0,110	192,168.0.1	000FE00.00132
	E rectus	192,198.0.4	denenio	132,168,0,114	192,168,0,1	000FE017F367
	E1120-08	192.193.0.16	dynamic	192168.0.3	112168.0.1	000FE016D-411
	Device No D00FED191ADF	152.168.0.38	dynamic	132168.0.10	192168.0.1	000FE0151A0F
	Device No 000FE0183184	192.168.0.221	static	192.168.0.221	192,168.0.1	000FE0183184
	El Merce	192,168.0.26	dynamic	192,168,10,3	192,168,10,1	000FE00000Ft
	Device No BOOFEE191AD7	192,199.0.34	dynamic	192168.010	192168.0.1	000FE0190A07
	El uner?	152.168.0.39	dynamic	132168.0.112	192168.0.1	000FE0D00004
	. E 0.4x	192.168.0.28	dynamic	192.168.0.125	192,168.0.1	000FE017E34E
	Jaka Tik Denke Setue	100.000.007	Lat of UTM		Ver station	

2 Click the <Connection Settings> in the "UTMA/UTSA Device Overview" window.

Device Inform	tions	^	
Device Name Device Status Sesal No	Device No 000FE01StA0F Waiting for connection 1524416		hange onnection attings
Version Build Number Schema ID Device ID Boot Server Notwook Settie IP Address IP Type Sosic IP Sosic IP Gateway IP MAC Passwood Setti	192168.0.92 dynamic 192168.0.113 192168.0.1 000FE0181130	۹۲ ۱۹۹۹ ۱۹۹۹	ittings itup Passwon nd Language ember i Gaoupe scare minose
Admin Pacowood	Disabled	9 P	ir)
Language Connection	English		OK

**3** Select the host PC that is connected to the PC Expanion in the "UTMA-/UTSA-Server Connection list". Then click <Edit>.



<u>4</u> Select 'Start following program' Then type the execute file name in the 'Program' column. Type the folder for the execute file in the 'Folder' column. For example, if you would like to run 'memo' program automatically, type the following information; program: Notepad.exe, Folder: C:\Windows.

Then click the <OK> button and <Save> button.

t Connection	Prome				
Connecti	on: TS 2				
Connection Settin	191				
ferminal Server i	network address:	192 . 168 .	0.9		
User Name			Domain		
Password	£		0	Enable Autologon Mod	
tert Programs S Decktop Start the follo Program Folder:	wing program				
	deo Mode Settings				
Desktop Size:	800 × 600 × 16 bi		V Use 60H	Iz VSYNC	~
			(	ОК	Cancel

5 In order to save the changed option, the PC Expanion must be restarted. Click the <Yes> button in order to restart the PC Expanion.

ending	
Sending changes to UTMA device Please wait	UTMAA/UTSA Devices Management Console
	New settings was saved successfully!     New settings was saved successfully!     Please restart UTMAJUTSA device for changes to take effect.     Do you want to restart the UTMAJUTSA device Now?     Yes No

Note

• If the user uses the specific PC Expanion, the following figure appears. Click the <Yes> button and the PC Expanion will be restarted.

UTMAA	JTSA Network Error
3	Error 10047 while create network connection! An address incompatible with the requested protocol was used

If the specific PC Expanion is turned off or if the PC Expanion is not on the network, the image to the right appears. Click the <OK> button.

•	Attention: The established session of that device will be disconnected
1.	after clicking "Yes"
_	After you reconnect and login, the user will get
	his session back.
	Do you want to reset this device now?

#### **6** Click the <Connect> button.





<u>7</u> When the Windows logon window appears, type the user ID and the password. Then click the <OK> button. The set application runs automatically. If the set application is terminated, the PC Expanion is logged off automatically.

### 25. How to manage grouped PC Expanions under the NCT-2000-XP program

The NCT-2000-XP console's 'Hardware Settings (LAN/Local)' device list shows all PC Expanions that are currently connected to the network or were connected. A user can more efficiently manage PC Expanions by grouping them. Group PC Expanions according to the procedures below.

1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Then <Hardware Settings (Local/LAN)> ► Click to the <UTMA/UTSA Device Group(s)>. Move the mouse cursor to the right side screen and click the right mouse button. Go to <New> ► <New Logical Group>



**2** Type the group name and the description. Then click the <OK> button. You can now view the new group.

Enter UTMA D	evice group)	name			X
Description:	Group Name:				
			ОК	Cancel	

3 There are two ways to assign PC Expanions in a group. One is how to assign the PC Expanion in the "UTMA/UTSA Device Group(s). The other is how to assign each PC Expanion. The following is how to assign the PC Expanion in the "UTMA/UTSA Device Group(s)." Click on "UTMA/UTSA Device Groups" and click the right mouse button. Go to <New> ► <Add an UTMA/UTSA to Group>.



4 Select the PC Expanion that you want to group in the "Available UTMA/UTSA devices" and then click <OK> button. If you would like to select multiple PC Expanions, use the "Ctrl" key and the mouse.

Adding UTMA/UTSA o	levice to group	
Available UTMA/UT	SA devices	
UTMA/UTSA Device Name	Serial No	-
Duke use5 N1000-5	2504075 1500022	
user2 u	1500021	
L110 - 14 uper1	1500019	
Device No 000FE0191A07	1579560	
uner2 Iner2	1561643	~
ase select item from list and Click. DK to o	hoose selected item.	
<u>(</u>	0K Cane	~

#### How to assign a PC Expanion

1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Go to <Hardware Settings (Local/LAN)> ► Select <UTMA/UTSA Devices> and then double-click the PC Expanion that you would like to change.

Elle Action Yew Belp									
⇔ → 🗈 🖻 🗙 🚭 🖸 🕏									
UTHA(UTSA-Settings GLocal Users and Groups (Local) Computer Policy Gativeere Settings (Local) Converse Settings (Local) Converse Settings (Local)	UTMARUTSA Devices List Ust of all UTMARUTSA devices that are active and not active on the network.								
	🖃 🗮 Hardware Settings (LAN)Tocal)		Device Name	IP Address	IP Type	Static IP	Gatemay IP	MAC	
UTMA/UTSA Devices		Device No 000FE018F0C8	192,168,0.37	dunemic	192,163,0,10	132,168,0,1	000FE018F0C8		
UTMA/UTSA Device Group(s)		EL120 - 11	192.168.0.8	dynamic	192.168.0.13	192.168.0.1	000FE018041A		
	12	EL110 07	192,168,0.14	dynamic	192,168,0,14	192,168,0,1	000FE 00 00006		
	11	EL120-04	132,168,0.9	dunenic	192168.0.110	132,168,0,1	000FE0000132		
		meduz	192.168.0.4	dynamic	192.168.0.114	192.168.0.1	000FE017F367		
	12	EL120-08	192.168.0.16	dynamic	192.168.0.3	192.168.0.1	000FE0180411		
		Device No 000FE0191A0F	192.168.0.38	dynamic	192.168.0.10	192.168.0.1	000FE019140F		
		Device No 000FE0183184	192 168 0.221	static	192.168.0.221	192.168.0.1	000FE0183184		
		EU use2	192,168.0.26	dynamic	192.168.10.3	192,168,10,1	000FE00000F5		
		Device No 000FE0191A07	192.168.0.34	dynamic	192.168.0.10	192.168.0.1	000FE0191407		
		E user!	192.168.0.39	dynamic	192.168.0.112	192.168.0.1	000FE0000004		
		E dke	132,168.0.28	dynamic	192.168.0.125	132,168.0.1	000FE017E3AE		
	9	UTHALISA Device Sense		List of UTINA SE	AITSA.	View station	screen exted to the		

2 Click the <Member of Groups> in the "UTMA/UTSA Device Overview".



3 Click the <Add> button.



**<u>4</u>** Select the group that you would like to group in "Available groups" and click the <OK> button.

	oup for UTMA/	oron devi	
Available groups			
office			
		K	Cancel
			-

5 Click the <OK> button or the <Apply> button.



# 26. How to manage when user forgets the password of the NCT-2000-XP program

An administrator is responsible for setting the NCT-2000-XP console password. When you lose or forget an NCT-2000-XP console password, you can reset the password according to the procedures below.

1 Run the NCT-2000-XP program and input any password or character.



2 When the wrong password message appears, click the "OK" button.



3 When "Did you forget Your password?" message appears, click the <Yes> button.



<u>4</u> When "Please press "OK", end install program now" message appears, click the <OK> button. Then exit the program. The previous password is reset. If you would like to set new password, please refer to "21. How to set the password of NCT-2000-XP program" in Part 8.



## 27. How to add or remove the serial number of NCT-2000-XP program

The serial number of the current version of a PC Expanion is embedded in the product. To view a serial number, click the <Info> button on the PC Expanion's initial screen. The serial number of a product manufactured before the year 2005 is not embedded. The serial number of a product manufactured before the year 2005 is printed on the label at the bottom of the product with an activation key. If your serial number is embedded by default, you do not need to add the serial number in the NCT-2000-XP console. Otherwise, you must add the serial number in the NCT-2000-XP console to use the product normally.

You can add or delete serial numbers according to the procedures below.



#### How to add a serial number

1 Go to <Start> ▶ <All Programs> ▶ <NCT-2000-XP> ▶ <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Go to <Information & Settings> ▶ Select <Serial Numbers>. If a PC Expanion with an added serial number connects to a host computer, the serial number is automatically displayed as shown on the right. The 'Serial Number Location' is represented as 'Device', when a serial number is saved in the PC Expanion by default. If a serial number is manually added, the 'Serial Number Location' is represented as 'Hard Disk.'

Ein Atton yev Help						
+ → S 🗑 🕃 🕞 😭						
Charles de trage Charles de trage () accél Construit en de traver () a	Securitumber (2) 1930079 (2) 293401 (2) 293401 (2) 293401 (2) 293401 (2) 293401 (2) 293540	Runder of Konose	Statoer	Pagitar das.c NX regitimed NX regitimed NX regitimed	Seriel-cookers CITHAUTSID L. CITHAUTSID L. CITHAUTSID L. CITHAUTSID L.	

In order to add a serial number, select the <Serial Numbers> of <Information & Settings> and then click the right mouse button. Or move the mouse point to the right window of program and then click the right mouse button. Select <Add Serial Number>.

4 → S 🗑 🖉 🔓 📌				
Constant and American Constant and Americant Americant Americant and Americant Americant Americant Americ	Stanber of Koreer	Statione + E	Register statu No rogbered Kd rogbered Kd rogbered Kd rogbered Kd rogbered	Jené Locobo         UPAQUESO           UPAQUESO         UPAQUESO           UPAQUESO         UPAQUESO           UPAQUESO         UPAQUESO           UPAQUESO         UPAQUESO

3 If there is no a serial number on the list, the insert window with user's information appears. If there is more than one serial number on the list, the serial number and the activation key input window appears. Type the serial number and the activation key. Then <OK> button.

Activation key:	· -

You can add all serial numbers after making a file. Go to <Software</li>
 Settings (Local)> ▶ <Information & Settings> ▶ <Serial Numbers> and then click the right mouse button. Select <Import Serial Numbers>.

File Action Yew Help				
+ → 🐿 🗉 🕃 🖷 🖉				
UTRALICS-Catings UTRALICS-Catings Local Compare Factor Local Compare Factor Discontinues Manage Containing Compare Local Compare Professional Statings United	Number of hornest 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	8 6	Register status fait registered fait registered fait registered fait registered fait registered fait registered	UTHAUTSAD
Experian				

Note

Run the "Notepad" program. And then type the serial number and the activation key as shown in the picture on the right. Save the file.

Í	👅 ເ	Intitl	ed -	Note	epad		
	Eile	<u>E</u> dit	For	nat	<u>V</u> iew	<u>H</u> elp	
						22222 5555	

5 Select the file where the serial number is saved.

Look j	v 🥪 W2K-ENG	(C.)	٠	🌣 🖻 💣 🛛	-
My Pocente Decision Decision My Documents My Computer	CRLAND DORLANDC DOOMRETS NOOTEO Program File Quicktine WDMT Bisenal humbs	6			
67					
My Network Places	File pane:	perial number bit		•	<u>Open</u>



• If the serial number and the activation key are incorrect, when you click the <Open> button, this error message will appear.



**6** Select the serial number that you would like to input and then click "OK" button.

Import Serials numbers	
Please select serial numbers to import by clic Nage: Serial Number Comments	king the checkbox
Company:	Import Serials numbers
Enot Done	Please stelet and runbers to report by dising the decision.
Provide the E-Decoments and Setting/Luter/VCeithquLenin.nm	

#### How to delete the serial number

1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000-XP console>. Go to <Information & Settings> ► Select the <Serial Number>.

the Action yew theb (= → 🕄 Tel [] Eg (*)						
Torona and a set of the set	Sevel Nanber 11 120019 2 250461 2 1061631 11 1261643	Tamber of locross	Stations 4	Register status Not registered Not registered Not registered Not registered	Serial Location urmequitas D urmequitas D urmequitas D urmequitas D	

2 To delete a serial number, select the serial number to be deleted, right-click and select <Delete> from the pop-up menu. If the serial number is in use, you cannot delete the number. You can figure out whether a serial number is in use or not by checking the number in the 'Number of Stations' field. If there is no number in the 'Number of Stations' field, you can delete the serial number.



# 28. How to delete the PC Expanion on the list of NCT-2000-XP console

1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Go to <Hardware Settings (LAN/Local)> ► <UTMA/UTSA Devices>. Select the PC Expanion that you would like to delete in the UTMA/UTSA Devices List.

File Action New Help					
* → 50 R × 20 G 🕏					
UTHA/UTSA Settings	Serial Number	Mather of Icanees	Subiene	Register status	Sensi-Location
* CP Lord Come ter Pales	2504053	1		Not registered Not registered	UTHAUTSAD
8-11 Settyers Settings (bod)	III THEFT	1		Ad repaired	LENALENAD
T at Secolars		i antider New	•	Act registered	LONALDIAD
Deformation & Settings     Get Product Sylomation	14 250061			Act registered	LOMALESAD
Product Moniton			6	Not registered	UTMALITSAD
Super Sector		Delete			
Seciel IS makers		Seheh			
<ul> <li>ISD-Device Assignment(c)</li> </ul>		410			
🛪 🔮 Seftware Settings (LAN)					
R TE Hardware Settings (LAN/local)					
	1				

- 2 Select a PC Expanion, right-click and select <Delete Device> from the pop-up menu. You can delete a PC Expanion only when it is not in the same sub-network or turned off. You can only delete a PC Expanion whose icon is red. When the icon is blue or green, the <Delete Device > menu is disabled. NCT-2000-XP console does not refresh the list in realtime. Press the 'F5' key or the 'Refresh' button on the top of the screen to refresh the contents of the list.
- 3 The message window appears. If you click the <Yes> button, the PC Expanion will be deleted. If you click the <No> button, the PC Expanion will be not deleted.



# 29. How to set the resolution and frequency on the PC Expanion

You can set the resolution and frequency of the PC Expanion to be used when it is connected to a host computer in advance. The specified resolution and frequency overrules the resolution and frequency settings made when you initially set up the host computer.

#### How to configure in the PC Expanion.

<u>1</u> Click the <Setup> button or the <Setup> of <Options> button in the startup screen of PC Expanion.



Setup	Reset	Info	Close
-------	-------	------	-------

2 'Select 'TS Options' tab and the terminal server of the connection list. Then click the <Enable-Disable> button. Click the <Edit> button in order to set the information of the host PC.



3 Select the resolution and frequency in the 'Desktop size' field. Available resolutions are displayed depending on your product model. 'Mode Test' is a function to test a selected resolution before applying it so that you can check if a selected resolution is supported by your monitor. Since some resolutions may not be supported by your monitor, use the 'Mode Test' function to check. Click the <OK> button and then the <Save> button.

Server Network Address User nonie	ob0.000.000	
Programa		
- Desison		
O Ellast todowing program		
Program		
Polair		
Deskhop size		
0 640x400 254 Colden	640+607 H6-Callor	
600x600 154 Culues	W 800-600 HE-Color	
1014x768 156 Colorg	C 1824/8816-Catar	
<ul> <li>Use 60H0 VSVNC</li> </ul>	Use 7912 VEYNC	
720541024110 Color at 63Hz (s	one monitors may not display invarianty	

#### How to set in the NCT-2000-XP console

1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Go to <Hardware Settings (Local/LAN)> ► Select <UTMA/UTSA Devices> and then double-click the desired PC Expanion.

Ele Action 19ew 19eb ⇔ → 💽 158 🗙 🖓 [?] (?]						
UTHA(UTSA-Settings + Cocal Users and Groups (Local) + Cocal Computer Yolky	UTMA/UTSA Devices Lis	ı				
<ul> <li>Br Local Computer Policy</li> <li>B Software Settings (local)</li> </ul>	List of all UTNA/UTSA devices that	are active and no	t active on t	he network.		
Software Settings (LAV)	UTMA/UTSA Devices:					Columna.
Hardware Settings (J.AN(facal)	A Device Name	PAddett	Pirce	State P	Galence P	MAC
E UTRUTA Deversion	LL12-00 No CODEDIBOOS LL12-01 LL12-01 LL12-04 Ll12-04 Ll12-04 Ll12-04 Ll12-04 Ll2-04 L	192.168.0.27 192.168.0.14 192.168.0.14 192.168.0.9 192.168.0.9 192.168.0.9 192.168.0.9 192.168.0.25 192.168.0.25 192.168.0.25 192.168.0.25 192.168.0.24 192.168.0.24	dyranic dyranic dyranic dyranic dyranic dyranic dyranic dyranic dyranic dyranic dyranic dyranic dyranic dyranic	192.1680.10 192.1680.13 192.1680.14 192.1680.110 192.1680.110 192.1680.10 192.1680.01 192.1680.02 192.1681.03 192.1680.01 192.1680.01 192.1680.02	1921980.1 1921980.1 1921880.1 1921880.1 1921880.1 1921880.1 1921880.1 1921880.1 1921880.1 1921880.1 1921880.1	000FE115F0C3 000FE111644 000FE1000013 000FE100013 000FE117535 000FE115154 000FE115154 000FE115000F 000FE115000F 000FE115154 000FE115154
	INALITA Cardon Selan	Sant 🦾	List of UTHE	NATISA.	View station Control Communities Communities	ecreen ected to this

2 Click the <Connection Settings> in the "UTMA/UTSA Device Overview" window.

Device Inform	ations	<u>^</u>
Device Name Device Status Setial No Firmware	Device No 000FE0191A0F Waiting for connection 1524416	Change - Connection Setting:
Version Build Number Schema ID Device ID Boot Server Network Settin	5.4 10198 71 120 ver. xppro-kor-com12 vgs	Setting: Setup Pacoword and Language
IP Address IP Type Static IP Gateway IP MAC Password Setti	192.168.0.92 dynamic 192.168.0.113 192.168.0.1 000FE0181133	Fittinge
Admin Password	Disabled	Print
Language Connection	English	м

3 Select the host PC that is connected to the PC Expanion in the "UTMA-/UTSA-Server Connection list." Then click <Edit> button.



4 Select the Desktop size and the frequency. Then click the <OK> button.

Edit Connection Pr	ofile				
Connection	TS 2				
Connection Settings Terminal Server net	work address	192 . 168	0.9		
User Name			Donai	in [	
Password				Enable Autok	gan Mode
O Start the followin Program Folder	ga og san				
UTMAAUTSA Video	Node Settings				
Decktop Size: 80	0 × 600 × 16 bit		V Use	60Hz VSYNC	
				ОК	Cancel

5 In order to save the changes, the PC Expanion must be restarted. Click the <Yes> button in order to restart the PC Expanion

Sending	UTMA/UTSA Devices Management Console 🛛 🛛 🔯
Sending changes to UTMA device Please wait Cancel	New settings was saved pacessfully! Please restart UTMAUTSA dowce for changes to take effect. Do you wark to restart the UTMAJUTSA device Now? <u>yes</u> <u>yes</u>



If the user is currently using the specific PC Expanion, the following message appears. Click the <Yes> button and the PC Expanion will be restarted.

UTMA/L	JTSA Devices Management Console 🛛 🕹
1	Attentions The established session of that device will be disconnected, where doing income After your process after your process after your back and its session back and bo you want to reset this device now?

✔ If the specific PC Expanion is turned off or if the PC Expanion is not on the network, the following image appears. Click the <OK> button.



#### **6** Click the <Connect> button.



7 The screen with the resolution and the color depth set is displayed.

HP-HCE-EN

HP-MCE-ENG XPPRO-KOR-COM18 XPPRO-KOR-COM11

# 30. How to set the user ID and the password before the PC Expanion logs in to the host PC

If the PC Expanion is connected to a host computer, the Windows logon screen appears. You can preset your user name and password so that you can logon to Windows without entering them each time. To logon to Windows automatically, refer to '8. Auto Logon when PC Expanion is connected to a Host Computer.'

#### How to set in the PC Expanion

1 Click the <Setup> button in the startup screen of the PC Expanion.

Computing	
	UTMA Options
INTRO-CONT INTRO-CONT	Setup Reset Info Close
Contract 1 Fernerik Contract	

2 'Select 'TS Options' tab and the terminal server of the connection list. Then click the <Enable-Disable> button. Click the <Edit> button in order to set the information on the host PC.



3 Enter a user name in the 'User name' field. The user name allows alphabet letters only. You can enter a user name in a PC Expanion. You cannot enter a password in a PC Expanion. Since a password is private profile information, PC Expanion cannot save the information. Click the <OK> button to save the settings and click the <Save> button to finish the setting.

User notte:	Domain
Hograns	
Desktop	
C Start following program	
Program	
Folder	
Desktop size	
0 640x460 256 Colors	C 640x400 HI-Color
0 000x600 256 Coloca	@ 899x600 Hil-Color
0 1024x768 256 Colors	C 1024x768 HI-Color
<ul> <li>Use 60Hz VSVNC</li> </ul>	O Use 75Hz VSVNC Mode Test
<ul> <li>1250x1024 HI-Color at 63Hz (s)</li> </ul>	

4 Click the "OK" button.

#### How to set in the NCT-2000-XP console

1 Go to <Start> ► <All Programs> ► <NCT-2000-XP> ► <NCT-2000-XP Console>. Go to <Hardware Settings (Local/LAN)> ► Select <UTMA/UTSA Devices> and then double-click the desired PC Expanion.

Gie áctos yev Help						
* → 🕲 🗷 🗶 🔀 🕃 😫						
UTHA/UTSA-Settings + ULL Local Users and Groups Quiced + ULL Local Computer Policy + ULL Software Settings (Local)	UTMA/UTSA Devices List					
	List of all UTMA/UTSA devices that	are active and no	actine and	he retricit.		
Software Settings (LAV)	UTMA/UTSA Davices:					Colorre_
Hardware Settings (LAN/loce)	<ul> <li>Device Name</li> </ul>	IP.Addmix	IP Type	State IP	GENNN P	MAC
UTMA/UTSA Devices     UTMA/UTSA Devices	EDevice No BORECTORIDCO	112.168.0.37	dynamic	132168.010	10216031	000720107000
• A number range and the	EU120-11	152,158,0,8	dramic	152168.013	102.155.0.1	000PE018E41A
	EU110-07	152,158,0.14	deneric	152168.014	152,158 (1,1	000FE0E000006
	EU12044	192,168.0.9	denerio	182168.0110	152,168 8.1	000FE0D00132
	Electro	192.958.0.4	dentria	182168.0114	192,168-0.1	000FE017F367
	- EL120-89	192.968.0.99	dynario	182168.03	192.168-3.1	000FE019E-411
	EDevice No BOBFEOTSLABF	152.168.0.29	dynamic	132162.010	192,160,0,1	DODFE CTOTAL ARE
	EDevice No BOBFECTED101	112.168.0.221	their:	132168.0225	102,160,0,1	000FE0103104
	EU uner?	152,158,0.25	dramic	15216810.3	102 155 10 1	000720200075
	Device No BORFECT START	152,158,0.34	dramic	152168.010	152,168,0,1	000FE0191AE7
	El seer1	152,168,0.39	denerio	182168.0112	152,166 8,1	000FE0D0000A
	U El dAc	192.168.0.29	dennio	182168.0125	192,168-0.1	000FE017E34E
	2 an	100.008.0.00		120100.010	100.100.01	
	Interaction Contractions	San and	un of units	1000 C	West data	speen rected to this.

2 Click the <Connection Settings> in the "UTMA/UTSA Device Overview" window.



3 Select the host PC that is connected to the PC Expanion in the "UTMA-/UTSA-Server Connection list." Then click <Edit> button.

<u>4</u> Type the user name and the password in the "Edit Connection Profile" window.



	lon: TS2				
mection Setti					
	returnt addapts 15	2.161.0			
User Nand	٤		Domain		
Pasoword	t			Enable Autolog	on Mode
Decklop	etrgi				
	wing program				
Program.	wegprogram				
- Nograni					
Folder					
Folder					
Folder MAJUTSA V	deo Node Settings				
Folder MAJUTSA V	ideo Node Settings 800 x 600 x 16 bit	×	Use 60	Hz VSYNC	~
Folder MAJUTSA V		×	Use 60	H2 VSYNC	

5 In order to save the changes, the PC Expanion must be restarted. Click the <Yes> button in order to restart the PC Expanion.

Sending		UTMA/UTSA Devices Management Console
Sending changes to UTMA device Please wait Cancel	<b>→</b>	New settings was saved successfully! Please restart UTMA/UTSA device for changes to take effect Do you wave to restart the UTMA/UTSA device Now? <u>yes</u> <u>up</u>

**Note** If the user is currently using the specific PC Expanion, the following figure will appear. Click the <Yes> button and the PC Expanion will be restarted.



● I If the specific PC Expanion is turned off or if the PC Expanion is not on the network, the following image appears. Click the <OK> button.

UTMAA	JTSA Network Error 🛛 👔
8	Error 10047 while create network connection! An address incompatible with the requested protocol was used.

**6** You can see the user ID when the logon window appears after connecting to the host PC.

### 31. How to uninstall the NCT-2000-XP program

If you uninstall the NCT-2000-XP application, you cannot use the PC Expanion.

1 Please click on the <Start> button on the Windows logon screen and select <All Programs ► NCT-2000-XP ► Uninstall NCT-2000-XP> in order.

	E POP	•
98971	🛅 Harvel	
	Microsoft Office Tools	•
a Internet	Control NControl	•
🍠 Internet Explorer	CT-2000-1P	MCT-2000-XP Console
E-mail Nerosoft Cullock	PrintMe Enternet Printing	<ul> <li>MCT-2000-XP Internet registration</li> </ul>
1000000	Realtek Sound Manager	<ul> <li>Internet upos</li> </ul>
NCT-2000-3P Interne	C SSRAID	📢 🐘 Uninstal NCT-2000-0P
	🛅 Starbup	,
Notepad	Adobe Reader 6.0	
NCT-2000-3P Interne	🦽 Internet Explorer	
Update	Mcrosoft Access	
ANG Free Edition for	Microsoft Excel	
Windows	Microsoft FrontPage	
Mcrosoft Ward	Microsoft Outlook	
	Microsoft PowerPoint	
🛃 Disk Cleanup	W Microsoft Word	
-	1 MSN Explorer	
All Programs 👂	Outlook Express	
	🚊 Renote Assistance	
	Windows Media Player	
🖥 start 🔰 🖉 🚺	3 Windows Messenger	and the second se

2 When the 'Uninstall NCX-2000-XP' message window appears please click on the <Next> button. (If the 'Administrator password' has been set, please click on the <Next> button after inputting the 'Administrator password'.)

Ininstalling NCT-2000-)	(P
Officestation	This program will remove NCT-2000-XP V 4.03.072 from your computer.
	It is strongly economended that you close all Windows opticities to be a conversite this show and the conversion point in an end of the conversion of the conversion of the University of the conversion of them the conversion of the Partners of the conversion of them the conversion of the Partners of the conversion of them the conversion of the Partners of the conversion of the conversion of the conversion of the Partners of the conversion of
A Smart Way to Expand	< Ref Next> ) C



5 When the program is uninstalled completely the following message window appears. Please select the 'Yes, I want to restart my computer now', and then click on the <Restart> button.



to access USB port' and select the PC Expanion from the list and click the <Apply> button. The 'Main Console' refers to the host computer. The list displays device names with serial numbers. A device name is the name that appears in the device list when you select 'Hardware Settings (LAN/Local)' ▶ 'Device'. For renaming procedures, refer to '23. Renaming a PC Expanion Name.'

Ele Action yew yeb			
¢ → 🖪 🗷 🔮			
UTIVA(UTSA-Settings Cocal Users and Groups (Local) Users Cocal Users and Groups (Local) Users Computer Policy Software Settings (Local) 4 Settings - Software Settings (Local) 2 Settings (Local) - Software Settings - Software Settin	Pont5j DeviceConnected US8     SanSurg SUB-512H8 US8 Device     Wokwebi 1:	Man Storage Device	Seeky
Gef Analake USE Hars (HOST)     Gef Analake USE Hars (HOST)     Gef Analake USE Hars (HOST)     Gef Analake     Gef (Host) (Host)     Gef (Host) (Host)     Gef Analake Settings (J.Ak)(Host)	U1946 MAC Addess L118-14 usef Device No. 000FE0188A07 usef usef U0980 Device No. 000FE0182164	Setal Nux 1900019 1573960 1961643 1961631 1523799	
	Allow all users access to every USB pot		

## Part 9 | Troubleshooting an error message

## Troubleshooting an error message that appears in the PC Expanion

#### Reading flash data...

#### Initialization Reading flash data...

While the PC Expanion is booting, the following message appears.

#### Getting dynamic IP address…

Please wait... Getting dynamic IP Address.. While the PC Expanion receives the IP address automatically, the following message appears.



Error DHCP server was not found... Try Again Setup If the PC Expanion does not receive the IP address from DHCP, an error message appears.

#### • Check Point :

- Check if there is a DHCP server on the current network.
- **2** Check if a LAN cable is connected to the PC Expanion.
- Check if the LAN cable connected to the PC Expanion is a Direct Cable.
- Check if the LAN cable is properly connected and not down.

If there is no DHCP server on the current network, click the <Setup> button, select 'Use Static IP address' in the 'Network' and manually set the IP address. For the IP address and gateway address required for manual setting, ask your computer administrator.

#### Static IP address was assigned.



When the IP address is set manually, the following message appears.

#### Try to boot latest client…



This message appears while the PC Expanion searches for the latest version of the NCT-2000-XP program. If there is a host computer installed within the same sub-network and the computer and PC Expanion can communicate, PC Expanion searches for the latest version from the host computer. If the latest version is downloaded, the screen blinks once and PC Expanion restarts. The symbol next to the message rotates while the latest version is being downloaded.

#### No Terminal Server found or not all services initialized yet, please click on the connection list and try again



When the PC Expanion is set to find the host PC automatically, "Autodetection" is set in <TS Options>. However the PC Expanion may not find the host PC where the NCT-2000-XP program is installed.

#### Check Point :

- Check if the NCT-2000-XP program is installed on the host computer.
- Check if the LAN cable is properly connected to the host computer.
- Check if the host computer and PC Expanion are in the same subnetwork.
- Check if the firewall or anti-virus programs installed on the host computer or network equipment are compatible with NCT-2000-XP.

#### Connection Terminal Server…

#### Connection Vindou

Connecting Terminal Server...

When the user clicks the <Connect> button, this message appears.

#### Host unreachable…



When the PC Expanion is connected to the host PC, and the PC Expanion does not find the host PC this message appears.

#### Check Point :

- If you are connected to a host computer that you selected from the found host computer list by selecting 'Autodetection' in the <Setup> < TS Options> of the PC Expanion, check if the firewall or anti-virus programs installed on the host computer are compatible with NCT-2000-XP.
- ② If you have selected 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' in the <Setup> ► <TS Options> of the PC Expanion, check if the IP address of the host computer is identical with the Terminal Server Network address set in the in 'TS 2' or 'TS 3'.
- If you have selected 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' in the <Setup> ► <TS Options> of the PC Expanion, check if the NCT-2000-XP program is installed on the host computer to be connected.
- If you have selected 'TS 2' or 'TS 3' in the <Setup> ► <TS Options> of the PC Expanion, check if the host computer is in the same subnetwork.

#### TS ERROR - INVALID OR NO SERIAL NUMBER!

#### Message

TS ERROR - INVALID OR NO SERIAL NUMBER flk

This message appears when no serial number exists on the host computer. This message does not appear if the product includes a serial number. If a serial number is included, 'Serial No' appears when you click the <Info> button on the PC Expanion's initial screen.

#### Check Point :

Refer to "27. How to add or remove the serial number of the NCT-2000-XP program" in Part 8. Then add the serial number on the NCT-2000-XP console.

#### Connection was closed but data is not lost and application is still running at server side. Please connect terminal server later.

This message appears when the connection stops due to problems or abnormality occurs in the host PC or network equipment. Check the Host PC or the network equipment when this message appears and restart after turning off the power the host PC and PC Expanion.

#### Check Point :

- Check if the host computer is overloaded.
- 2 Check if the network traffic is overloaded.
- Check if the communication is not normal due to unstable power supply to the network equipment.
- Check if it occurs when you use a specific program.
- Check if it occurs when you use a specific file.

#### **Authorization warning**

When two PC Expanions use the same serial number simultaneously, this error message appears. The serial number embedded in the product does not reproduce this message.

#### • Check Point :

Check all serial numbers in the NCT-2000-XP program console.

# Troubleshooting about an error message that appears on the Host PC

#### **Multi user Error**

	List of non-certified/in	compatible
<b>N</b>	Module	Error Cod
One or more incompatible Module(s) in that NCT-2000-VP system has been detected! The additional Station(s) may not start or work: correctly!	win32k.sys	0x000001
Please run the NCT-2000XP Update n Panel/Software the latest Windows Ho	tfix/Service Patch!	Control Run Update

Microsoft is distributing Windows updates. Some security updates may conflict with NCT-2000-XP. A conflict may display an error message or disable a PC Expanion. If this happens, a new version will be distributed within a week. Therefore, please do not install Windows updates immediately after their release. If a problem with a Windows update is reported, detailed information will appear on our website for your reference.

## Appendix Glossary

### **Regarding PC Expanion**

#### **Host Computer**

The computer which is connected to a PC Expanion, or a computer in which the NCT-2000-XP program has been installed.

#### Station

A PC Expanion which is connected to a host computer, and is called a station of the host computer.

#### WoIP (Windows over IP)

New network protocol that enables a PC to operate multi windows simultaneously in virtual memory and the registered multi user can access through TCP/IP by using a PC Expanion. This technology does not require a high priced server and supports the multi user access via a terminal.

#### UTMA(UltraThinMultiAccess) Multi-User Terminal

UTMA (Ultra Thin Multi Access) Multi User Terminal is a network computing terminal using NComputing patent technology. It doesn't use CPU, VGA, or main chipsets, simply a programmable SoC to connect to the host PC. A terminal using UTMA technology can be connected to a host PC by using a LAN cable. It can also be connected to a remote PC via the Internet using TCP/IP.

### **Regarding computer network**

#### User account

A user in a computing context is one who uses a computer system. Users may need to identify themselves for the purposes of accounting, security, logging and resource management. In order to identify oneself, a user has an account (a user account) and a username, and in most cases also a password (see below). Users employ the user interface to access systems, and the process of identification is often referred to as log in.

#### Administrator

A system administrator is a person who is responsible for managing a multi-user computing environment, such as a local area network (LAN). The responsibilities of the system administrator typically include: installing and configuring system hardware and software; establishing and managing user accounts; upgrading software; and backup and recovery tasks.

#### Alias

An alias is a fictitious name used by an individual as an alternative to his or her true name.

#### Bandwidth

Bandwidth is often used as a synonym for data transfer rate - the amount of data that can be carried from one point to another in a given time period (usually a second). This kind of bandwidth is usually expressed in bits (of data) per second (bps). Occasionally, it's expressed as bytes per second (Bps).

#### **Client/Server**

Client/server describes the relationship between two computer programs in which one program, the client, makes a service request from another program, the server, which fulfills the request.

#### Console

The system console, root console or simply console is the text entry and display device for system administration messages, particularly those from the BIOS or boot loader, the kernel, from the system and from the system logger.

#### DHCP (Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol)

DHCP (Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol) is a communications protocol that lets network administrators centrally manage and automate the assignment of Internet Protocol (IP) addresses in an organization's network. When using the Internet Protocol, each machine that can connect to the Internet needs a unique IP address, which is assigned when an Internet connection is created for a specific computer. Without DHCP, the IP address must be entered manually at each computer in an organization and a new IP address must be entered each time a computer moves to a new location on the network. DHCP lets a network administrator supervise and distribute IP addresses from a central point and automatically sends a new IP address when a computer is plugged into a different place in the network.

#### DNS (Domain Name System)

The domain name system (DNS) is the way that Internet domain names are located and translated into Internet Protocol addresses. A domain name is a meaningful and easy-to-remember "handle" for an Internet address.

#### Download

Downloading is the transmission of a file from one computer system to another.

#### Dummy Hub

Dummy hub may include a group of gateway cards for connection to a local area network (for example, an Ethernet or a Token Ring), and a connection to a line.

#### Ethernet

Ethernet is the most widely-installed local area network (LAN) technology. Specified as IEEE 802.3.

#### **Fast Ethernet**

Fast Ethernet or 100BASE-T provides transmission speeds up to 100 megabits per second and is typically used for LAN backbone systems.

#### Firewall

firewall is a set of related programs, located on a network gateway server, that protects the resources of a private network from users from other networks. (The term also implies the security policy that is used with the programs.) An enterprise with an Intranet that allows its workers access to the wider Internet installs a firewall to prevent outsiders from accessing its own private data resources and for controlling what outside resources its own users have access to.

#### FTP (File Transfer Protocol)

File Transfer Protocol (FTP), a standard Internet protocol, is the simplest way to exchange files between computers on the Internet.

#### Gateway

A gateway is a network point that acts as an entrance to another network. On the Internet, a node or stopping point can be either a gateway node or a host (end-point) node.

#### Internet

Internet, sometimes called simply "the Net," is a worldwide system of computer networks - a network of networks in which users at any one computer can, if they have permission, get information from any other computer (and sometimes talk directly to users at other computers).

#### **IP Address**

The Internet is really the interconnection of many individual networks (it's sometimes referred to as an internetwork). So the Internet Protocol (IP) is basically the set of rules for one network communicating with any other (or occasionally, for broadcast messages to all other networks). Each network must know its own address on the Internet and that of any other networks with which it communicates. To be part of the Internet, an organization needs an Internet network number, which it can request from the Network Information Center (NIC). This unique network number is included in any packet sent out of the network onto the Internet.

#### LAN (Local Area Network)

Local area network (LAN) is a group of computers and associated devices that share a common communication line or wireless link and typically shares the resources of a single processor or server within a small geographic area (for example, within an office building). Usually, the server has applications and data storage that is shared in common by multiple computer users. A local area network may serve as few as two or three users (for example, in a home network) or as many as thousands of users (for example, in an FDDI network).

#### Log on

In general computer usage, logon is the procedure used to get access to an operating system or application, usually in a remote computer. Almost always a logon requires that the user has (1) a user ID and (2) a password. Often, the user ID must conform to a limited length such as eight characters and the password must contain at least one digit and not match a natural language word.

#### **MAC Address**

In a local area network (LAN) or other network, the MAC (Media Access Control) address is your computer's unique hardware number. (On an Ethernet LAN, it's the same as your Ethernet address.) When you're connected to the Internet from your computer (or host as the Internet protocol thinks of it), a correspondence table relates your IP address to your computer's physical (MAC) address on the LAN. The MAC address is used by the Media Access Control sublayer of the Data-Link Layer (DLC) of telecommunication protocols. There is a different MAC sublayer for each physical device type. The other sublayer level in the DLC layer is the Logical Link Control sublayer.

#### NIC (Network Interface Card)

A network interface card (NIC) is a computer circuit board or card that is installed on a computer so that it can be connected to a network.

#### Router

In packet-switched networks such as the Internet, a router is a device or, in some cases, software in a computer, that determines the next network point to which a packet should be forwarded toward its destination. The router is connected to at least two networks and decides which way to send each information packet based on its current understanding of the state of the networks it is connected to.

## FAQ

The following is a list of possible situations that may arise during the use of your product. Simple answers and solutions are provided for each :

### Q A message (shown below) repeatedly appears while installing NCT-2000-XP. What is the problem?



A When you try to install NCT-2000-XP using the Installation CD, it compares the contents of the CD with the latest version in the NComputing server. The message appears when the computer is not connected to the Internet or the port is blocked by a program such as a firewall. The reason why the message appears repeatedly is that there are multiple NComputing servers on the network. The redundant servers allow users to download the latest version of the software even if some are down or unreachable.

### Q Our company is using a firewall. Which ports should be opened to use a PC Expanion?

A The port numbers are as follows. TCP Port: 27605, 3581, 3597, 3645, 3646, 3725, UDP Port: 1027, 1283. The port numbers are subject to change without notice.

### **Q** If NCT-2000-XP Installation CD is not available, can I download the latest version of the program?

A Yes, you can download the latest version of the program. However, unlike installing it with the CD, you have to select the option to search for NComputing servers as follows when you try to install the latest program. Click <Start> ▶ <All Programs> ▶ <Accessories> ▶ <Command Prompt> or click <Start> ▶ <Run>, type 'cmd' and click OK. If the DOS command prompt window appears, change directory to the NCT-2000-XP program folder and type 'Setup.exe/ftpon'. Then the NComputing servers are searched and the program is updated with the latest version.

- Q Why does the warning message below appear when I install NCT-2000-XP?
- A Windows XP Service Pack 2 provides reinforced firewall that displays a security warning message when a new port is used. The message also appears when you install another program such as Messenger. If you select <Continue Cut Off> in the message box, you will not be able to find NComputing servers even if you run the setup program again because the port is blocked. If you select <Allow>, the port will open unless you block it manually. If you select <Check Later>, although the port is opened for now, the security warning message will appear again when the port is accessed next.



### **Q** Why does a message appear asking me to stop or delete a firewall or anti-virus program when I install NCT-2000-XP?

A PC Expanion communicates with a host computer using WoIP based on TCP/IP over an Ethernet connection. Therefore a firewall or antivirus program may block the operation of the program mistaking PC Expanion for a virus. Therefore, you have to open the ports in the corresponding program or stop the program to use PC Expanion. For the latest firewall and anti-virus program compatibility information, please visit our web site.

#### **Q** Why does the Add users screen appear when I install CT-2000-XP?

A PC Expanion emulates the operating system. Therefore, you have to add users in order to allow them to use their own files. For the procedures to add users, refer to Part 8 in the manual.

### **Q** Can I set a user account type as 'Computer administrator' or 'Limited' only in Windows XP?

A No. Although Windows XP basically shows 'Computer administrator' and 'Limited', Windows XP provides the account types supported by Windows 2000. To set an account type different than the basic types, as can be done in Windows 2000, refer to 'Adding a User Account' in Part 8 in the manual.

#### **Q** Do I have to register the serial number?

A Yes, you have to register the serial number. Otherwise, you cannot upgrade the program or use A/S.

### **Q** I have formatted the hard disk drive after registering the serial number. Can I register the serial number again?

A Yes, you can. You can register a serial number after formatting or replacing the hard disk drive. However, re-registration is limited to 10 times.

#### **Q** Can I connect a PC Expanion directly to a host PC?

A Yes, please refer to "5. How to connect the PC Expanion to the host PC directly" in Part 8 in the manual.

- **Q** How many PC Expanions can be connected to one host PC via the network equipment ?
- A Please refer to "Part 1. The features of the product."

#### Q Do I have to upgrade the NCT-2000-XP program?

A No, you don't need to upgrade the program if you do not have problems using it. However, since Microsoft is releasing security updates regularly, you may experience conflicts with new security updates. When a conflict with a security update is reported, a new version of the software will be distributed within a week. For more information refer to out website. In addition, a new version provides more functions. Therefore, using the latest version is recommended.

#### ${f Q}\;$ Will this with Windows® 98 or Windows ME?

A PC Expanion supports Windows® 2000 Professional, Windows® 2000 server, Windows® XP Home Edition, Windows® XP Professional, Windows® XP Media Center Edition, Windows® 2003 Standard Edition/Enterprise Edition, Windows® Small Business Server 2003 and Linux. For supporting other OS, please contact the technical support team.

### **Q** Must the version of the NCT-2000-XP programs in a sub-network be the same?

A Yes, they must be the same. Keep the program updated with the latest version. The latest version resolves problems of the previous version and provides more advanced functions. Since different versions in the same sub-network might cause data communication problems, please use the same version in a sub-network.

### **Q** Do I have to delete or stop the firewall, the security or anti-virus programs when I install NCT-2000-XP?

A No, you do not have to delete or stop them. However, some firewalls, security and/or anti-virus programs may cause problems when NCT-2000-XP is installed. In this case, you have to stop the real-time monitoring function of such a program to install NCT-2000-XP properly. In addition, the real-time monitoring function may cause problems when you use PC Expanion too. For detailed information, refer to our website.

### Q Do I have to setup a password for the NCT-2000-XP console password?

A Yes, we recommend setting a password for the NCT-2000-XP console. Otherwise, anyone can change the settings configuration in the console. Since the settings determine the PC Expanion operations, please keep the console password secure.

#### ${f Q}\,$ What if I forget the password of the NCT-2000-XP console ?

A Please refer to '26. How to mange when the user forgets the password of NCT-2000-XP program" in Part 8 in the manual.

#### **Q** Do I have to add a user account to use the PC Expanion?

A Yes, you must add a user. PC Expanion enables multiple users to have access to one computer simultaneously. If many users logon with the same user account, the last logged off user's settings will be saved. In addition, all users could see the contents created by other users causing a security problem. You must add the necessary number of user accounts and protect them with passwords.

#### **Q** Can the product support 10Mbps or 1Gbps?

- A No, PC Expanion supports 100Mbps. The product cannot run under 10Mbps or 1Gbps properly.
- Q I can only move the mouse cursor but cannot do anything else while I am using the PC Expanion. The PC Expanion status in the NCT-2000-XP console appears to be running.
- A This may happen when screen data is not received through the network because a LAN cable is disconnected or network equipment such as switching hub or IP sharer are temporarily unavailable. It may also happen when data communication is not stable due to an unstable power supply to network equipment or other reasons. In this case, turn the PC Expanion off, then turn it on and connect and logon to the host computer. Then you can resume your session without data loss. Check if network equipment such as a switching hub or IP sharer are operating normally and if sufficient power is supplied to the network equipment. You can avoid this problem by supplying stable power to the equipment using a UPS (Uninterruptible Power Supply).

#### **Q** What games can I play?

- A You can only run 2D games the Internet and casual games such as a Java and flash type. Refer to the list below for what is not supported on a PC Expanion.
  - 3D games that require a GPU or hardware accelerator.
  - Single user game that requires the program CD.
  - Games that run on at only one registered PC and checks the IP address of the system.

#### **Q** Can I view movie or mpeg file?

A Our product shares the resources of the host PC, so the memory and host PC resource is limited and the performance speed is dependant on the host PC's specification. Playing the video in full screen mode takes a lot of system resources. We recommend playing the video in and appreciate screen size that does not reduce the system speed. PC Expanion is designed to run office applications at the office such as surfing the Internet, word processing, or working with speadsheets.

#### **Q** Suddenly I cannot connect to a host computer.

A Microsoft enables automatic upgrades with Windows updates that fix various bugs and correct security holes. Some of Windows updates are closely related to the PC Expanion driver. We do not recommend installing Windows updates immediately after their release. We will provide a new version of the software as soon as possible on our website. If you experience a problem, remove the latest Windows update installed on your computer and upgrade the NCT-2000-XP with the latest version from our website.



Rev. A Part No. 160-0155



You may also contact technical support at 1-888-365-1210 Monday  $\sim$  Friday between the hours of 9:00 AM  $\sim$  5:00 PM PST to speak with a technical support representative.